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Introduction
' The Iife of Charlotie Corday.

The tragic story of Chglotte Corday res furnished the
subject for a number of literary works. It is the purpose
of this study to examine itie most impoftdnt of these ppo-
‘ductions, to discover their sources, and to inguire into
their.historicél acduraey. It will first be necessary to
state; ae Tar as they are known, tle histobical facts of
the 1life of this most)infe}esting character.

| MarieQAnne—Chaplotte de Corday d'Armont was born July
S7th, 1758 on a farm called "le Fonceray", part(o?the domain
of Sainthathupin—des—Ligneries, near Argeﬁtan.k; . Her cer-
tificate éf'baptism reads:

"Ce vingt-huit de jukllet mil'sept cgnt soixante-huit,
par nous soussigné curs, a été,baptisée Marie-Anne-Che rlotte,
rée d'hier du 1ééitime mariage de Messire Jacques—Frangois de
Corday, Feuyer, Feigneur d 'Armont et de noble Dame Marie—
Jacgueline de Gautier, son epouse, le parrain MesSiPe Jean-
Baptiste—Alexis de Cautier, Feuyer, Seignsur de Mésniv&l,la
marraine, noble Dame Frangoise-Marie-Aune 1évaillant de Cor—
day, le pére présent. '

Ont'signé:

Levuillant de Corday, Gautier de Mes&nival, Corday‘d'ﬁf—)

, o
mont, J.~L. Pollard, oqré de cette paroisse des Ligneries." ©

Jacques—Frangols de Corday d'Armont was "&n gentilhomme

(3)

»

fort puuvre, et aussl estime gue pauvre." He cane from a
f 4

very old femily. "Des chartes datees de 1l'an 1077, nous ap-

prennent qu'un Robert de Corday....prit part aux guerres des
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' (4) :
‘Normands en Italie." = Charlotte Corday's father was, more-
over, a gréat—grandson of Pierre Corneille.

His wife's family "jouissait dans le pays d'une grande
éonsidération; Flle prétendait, & tort ou a réison, des—
cendre des Palliol, rois d'Ecosse, devenus les Bailleu% de
Trance, et a ce titre elle guerlssait les ecrouelles " >

Frengois de Corday hed five children: two sons dnd three
daughters, of whom Chérlotte was the second daughter. Eo
extremely poor wes he, that he was‘obliged to partbwith some
of his children, entrusting them to kindly disposed relatives.
Thus it came about that Charlotte lived for several years
with her uncle, the abbé de Corday, at Vieques. It was he who
taughtkher to read, using as & primer a copy of the works of
Corneille, her illustrious anoéstop.

In tie meartime the father had become entangled in a law-
suit with his wife's bréthers, and had mofed to Caen in order
to pursue it more successfully.k He‘was still iiving tliere wheny,
Lat about twelve years of age, Charlotte returned to hepr family.

Shortly aftepwards, her mother died and the years which
followed would undoubtedly have been full of hardships for the
roor opphans, hed not Mme. de Belsunce, Abbess of the Abbaye—
aux-DNames, or Sinte—Trinité, at Ceen, and a friend of the’de-
ceased mother, obtained for Charlotte and her younger sister
the privilege of entering her convent. It was a royal convenf,

founded in 1066 by Queen Mathilde, tre wife of William the

Congueror. "Il ne recevelt que des externes, mais il y avait
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cing pensionnaires exceptionnelles noummées per le roi par-
mi des jeunes filles nobles et sans for?u?e. Crarlotte Cor-
day et sa steur obtinrent,Cette faveuf.“‘6

In the Abbaye—-aux-Dames, Charlotte fofmsd a lasting
friendship with Alexandrine de Forbin, the niece of Mme. de
Belsunce. The ruvles of the order were rot very strict, and
the wbbess and her coadjutriz, Mnme. de’Pqniécoulaﬁt were al-
lowed to %eqeive theié friends at the éonvent, Chaplotte
was often admitted to these social getherings, and in this
way, she met tle nephew of the coadjutrix, Doulcet de Ponté-
coulant, who‘was later elected deputy to the Convention, and
whom ehe was to choose as ler counsel before the Revolution-—
ary Tribunal.

The liberty and the leisure thet Charlotte Corday enjoyed
in the Abbaye—aux-Dame s, permitted her to ihdulge Ler tasté
for reading. It was dufing this period that her political idess
were forming. Her favorite authors were Corneille, PlutaPCh,

‘l'abbé Raynal, Rouss=au, Voltaire, Diderot;f 6Gependant, 8

¢0té de ces lectures émencipatrices, 11 est certain que Char-
lotte Corday continuait & s'entreternir d'études religieuses,
peut—étre par simple esprit de critigue et pour acquérir un
bagage de connalesances généraﬁ% sur 1esqueiles elle péuvait
plus solildement bLeser ses oﬁinions de républicaine. Quoi-
gu'il en soit, parmi les guelgues reliQmes>qui nous ont 6té
conservées de cettle femmé, le musée Carncvalet possede un ex-

emplaire du Typus Mundi, €dition de 1627..vvy qui portesur



Introductioh-—4.
le verso du fauxtitre, ces mots éerits de la mein méme de
Charlotte Corday |

'Achete 4 llVPbu, Cogday d'Armont, Sainte-Trinité de
uaen, mO décenbre 1790' " 7

Another document whlch shows tiat she read works of a
religious ne ture, is a letter now belonplng to the la Sico-
tiére collasction in thg municipal 11brary of Alengon.. This
letter was written by Charlotte Cordey to hercousin, Mme. Du-
hauville, and in it she relates the story of the patron saint
of the~1atter's little daughter, as she had recently read it
in the lives of the Q"ints.(s)

On T“ebruary 13th, 1790 the National Asuembly decreed ?g
sug ession of the monasteries and convents, and in March 1791)
Cherlotte, then nearly twenty-three years of age, returned with
her'sistér,to ihe Lhome of thei r fafher, who was still engrossed
in his lawsuits. She did not remedin there‘long,‘fOP’two red& ~
asons., The first was the‘extreme povefty;of the family, and
this second was an incompatibility of temperamgnt, whick made 1t
difficult for her and her father to live un&er the same roof;
"Jacyues-Frangois de Corday était un homme a utopies, un de ces
royalistes frottés d'economi politigue qui soutenaient, éﬁa
veille de la Révolution, le pouvoir établi, mals sans se dis—
simuler ses ebus. Il essayait méme 3 se maniere de les ré-
former et, dans ce but, il publia un "Mémoire & 1'Acsemblee
intermédiaire d'Argentan" at‘ﬁn autre sur "I'Eéaliﬂé des papr-

tages." D'ailleurs loyal sujet du roi et n'admettant pas %!



‘Introduction—-5.

4%ut:e forme de gouvernement que la monarchie. Charlotte
étéit ou se cfoyait répubiicaine‘ De la des discussions,
des froissements'continuels:le pere mettant en avan} gnn
eutorité et la fille le droit de penser 1ibrement."‘1f)
' In & gloomy old house known as the "Grand Manoir", it~
ﬁated in the rue Seint-Jean at Caern, lived Mme. de Bretﬁ%ille—
Gouville, & cousin bf Cherlotte's. Itvwas.there, without

any invitation of an;fsort, thet the girl decided to mke her
sbode. Mme.de Bretiville, a miserly old ludy, accustamed to
living alone, and thinking of the expense thatl another member

of the household would reke, received her young cousin, vut
without the leust enthusimem. - {le complaired tb her friend

Mme. de Leweillant, who Led also been e close friend of Cher-
lottek 's mother, Mme. de'Loyer de Marmonne, nee Levaillant,
says in her "Souﬁenirs": |

"A peine arrivées a Caen, nous vfmes‘écdoupib Mme. de Bret-
teville; elle était & notre porte preggue en méme temps que
nous.

"—-—Quel bonheur gue You s éoyeﬁ de retour! dit-elle a ma
mere. Je ne savais plus a quel saint me vouer. Yous voila
enfin, Jje me regerde comme‘sauvéei mais Je suils bilen tourmentee.

"—~Bh | de quoi? lui demanda me, mire.

"-~VTraiment, pendant votre absence, il m'est,tombé des nues
une parehte que je ne conneis pas du tout, et dont j'al perdu
la. femille de vue depuis bien des années. Elle est venue, il
y & un mois, descendre chez moi, accompagnée d'un porteur chargé
d'une melle. FElle m'a dit gu'elle availtl des affaires & Caen et

qu'elle espérait gue Je voudrais bien la recevoir. Elle s'est
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nommee; c'est, en effet, une parente, mwis je ne 1'avais
'jémais vue el cela me géne veaucouy.

“~~Pourquoi?'vous etes seule,vvous n'avez pas dé 50—
cldté intine; cela mettra de la gaieté chez vous et vous
fera comgagnié.

"Pyp trop, car elle ne parle guere; elle paraft ta-
citurns et conoentrée;’elle est toujours plongéé dans Je

P 1 g < > > s » .
ne sals quelles reflexions; enfin, je ne esais povrguoi, mai

-~0

- 11)
L
elle me feit peur; elle a l'air de mediter an mauveis coup.

After & short time, Charlotte Corday succeeded in dis—
pelling this first impression, and tiere arose between herp
and Mue . de Bretheville awarm affecﬁiom.‘

Slie Lad grown to be very beautiful. Mme. de Marmonne

"Flle était devenue trée grande et trés bd le; sa tuille
parfaitement prise quoigqu'un peu forte ne manquait pas de no-
blesse. Tlle s;occupait fért peu de sa parure ét ne cherchait
nullerment a feire valoir ses avantages personnels....Flle
etait d'une blenchour éblouissante ot de la plus éclatante
frafcheur;..fLe tissu de la peau étaii d'une rare finesse; on
croyait voir circuler son sang sous un pétale de lis. Elle
rougissait avee une facilité extréme et devenait slors vrai-
ment ravissante. fer veur, légérement voilés, étaient bien
fendus et tres beaux; sorn menton un rteu proéminent ne nuisait
pes 4 un ensemble clarmunt et plein de disiinction. L'ex- .

»
Pression de son beau visage etuit d'une douceur ireffable ainsi
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que le son de sa'voix.‘ Jamzis on n'entendit un organe plus
harmonieux, plus enehénteur; Jemels on ne vit un regard plus
angélique, plus pur, un sourire §1us attrayant. fes che- (12)
veux chatein ecleir s'accordaient parfaitement avéc son visage.%&

Most of the authors who have written about Charlotte
Oorday have attrivbuted to Ler some love affauir. These stories
wre 21l without foundation in fact, with the possible excep~
ﬁion of the one which’designites‘as her accepted lover, Bougon-
Longrais, the young"p’oéureur'général syndic" of the Calvados.
"e kunow, at least, that they were very good friends. Charlotte
speaks of him in her letter to Parbaroux written during Ler im-
Drisonment:

"Je vous prie, citoyen, defaire part de ma lettre au Cito-
ven Rougon, procureur genéral syndic du département . Je ne 1a
lui adresse pas pour piusienrs‘raison,s,d'abord Jje ne‘suis pes
slre que dans ce moment il soit & Fvreux, je crains de plus y\'

qfétant naturellement.Sensible, il ne s0it affligé de ma mort; je
le erole cependant assez bor cltoven pour se consoler par lles—

. a s ' LA - N
polr de la paix; je sals combien il }‘ esire, et J'espere qu'en

g d
13)
la. facilitant J'ai rempli ses weux."
M. Charles Vatel says: "Je euis convaincu que si Charlotte
‘s . IR B . '
de Corday a 'distingue', a preferc dquelgi'un, ce n'est ni Bel-
s i s . Tr. » Cia Y
sunce, ni Parbaroux, ni Boisjugan de Mingré, ni tout eutre, muis

N y ‘ Y n . . ' = y V
seulenent Zougon-Longrais. Frneore n'irais-je pus au delsa de

la nuance d'une synyuthie affectueuse.... Dans la lettre d'adieu



Introduction——8.

LY . LY . ~ . “ . )
crite per Pougon a =& mere le nmetin meme du Jjour ou il fut

[¢EN

‘exécuté, 1l dit:
~ "OR! Charlotfe Cordais! ok! ma noble et généreuse amid
tol dont le souvenir Occuba sahs cesse me mémoire et mon ceur,
attends-mol, je veils te rejoindre! Te désir de tegveﬁger'm'
mavait fait juSqu’é ce Jour supporter ifexistence. Je crois
avolr aséez satisfait 2 ce devoir sacré; Je meurs coﬁtent et
digne de toi.;

"Cetie apostroyhe & Crarlotte de Corday...dit assez gquels
Stuient les sentimén s de POugon-Longrais rour elle: Les par-
togeait-elle? et dens qpélle'mesure?....

"Fn 1868, il & éte vendu aux enchérés publigues & Tondres
une collection d'autogralhes, parmi'lesguels figuréit'une 1ettr9
de Charlotte Corday ﬁ Pougon~Longrais, 'l'homme gu'elle aimeit
& Cuen'. WNous svons fait de veilns efforts pour obtenir de plus
wliles renselgnemcrts. TNous n'avons pu savir ce Jue cetie let~

(14) o
tre est devenue." _ ‘

While Charlotte lived &t tke Crand Mancir, she‘apent much
time resding end her political opihions became mdfe and more fix—
ed. It secems thetthe pﬂhcip&l sqﬁrce of her republivanism was
rer admiration fof entiquity. Mme. de Marmonne tells us that,
"Lorsgue Charlotte se laisseit entrainer par 1l'expression de
ses convictions, elle trouvaitlbu&oursdans 1'nistoire antigue
une preuve gui l'aidait a démontrer gue les beaux temps des

r . » ”» &
reyub]nquaﬁancienpes etelent rreferables sux escals que ten\-
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taient les hommes de le Révolution frangaise" esrais wl-
gaires, disait-elle, et qui semﬁlent plutot faits pour dégoﬁ—
ter a Jemais un peuple de ce genre de gouvernement, qui’oe~
rendant =8t le plus noble de tous! Un jour ov elle s'eipri—
mait ainsi, Mme. Levaillant l'arréfa soudain et lul’dit: 'Est-
ce que par hasard vous seriez républicaine, e chére?f Char-
lotte reugit, puis répdhdit: 'Je le ser%is certes, si les Fran-
gois etaient dignes de la République!'" 15)
She resd ussiduously the Girondi st newspepers of Gorsue
end Perlet aé well as innumersble pamplle ts sent out into tlLe
departments from Paris, From them she conceived an implscable
hetred for Marat, for in the prbvinces, Marat was éonsidered
 the Montagne . Through his perer,"l'Ami du Peuple," he had mde
himself more widely known thdn were elither Tenton or Rohespier—
re, and he took o leading port in bringing about the downfall
of the Cirondins. The CGirondist rarty, on the other hand, was
the one that best reﬁresented,'in‘the opinianvof Charlottekcor—
dey, the ideals of the ancient‘republics. "Flle ne reconnut les
accents de la liberte antique que dens }ig)discours de Vergniavd,
de Briséot, de Louvet et de Barbaroux."\ , |
After the 3lst of May, 1793, which marked the £311 of the
Girondins, eighteen of the Iroscribed deputies sought refuge at
Cuen, that clty baving shown itself ffiendly to theip party. The
arri#alof these men aroused still more Charloite's enthusiasm;

Eer project of sacrificing Lerself for the peace of Ler country



Introduction--10,
began to take shape.

In order to obtein an @ccurate account of the state of
affairs at Paris, perhaps als o in order to galn inspiration
from personal acquaintance with the representatives of the
prineciples for whieh she had resolved to dile, she went to the
Potelél' Intendanwe, where the deputles were lodglng, under
pretext of solieiting Parbaroux's aid for her o0ld friend of
convent days, M\1lle de Forbin. Tre latter, fommerly canoness
of Troyes, had taken refuge in Switzerland at the time of the
suQEession of the monasteries, and was trying to obtein cer-
tein tithes and dues to which she was entitled. The papers

Substeﬁdating Ler elm were in the hands of the Minister of the
. Interibr; Parvaroux promised +to give Charlotte a Etter to
Lauze Duperret, a member of the Convehtion, with whése asslist-
ance she would be able to galn access to the Minister. In the
course of the several visits that she made to Barbaroux she
BUW othpr deputieu and ialkeuvdth come of them.

On the 5th or 6th of July, Charlotte went to Versorn to bid
ferewell to Ler cousin Mume. Gautier\ae Villiers. ‘Returning to
Caen, she spent the evening burning letters, pamphlets; ecud
other pupers that might'prove compromising to hef relatives and
friends. |

Sunday, July 7th, she witnessed a review of the National
Cuard of Caen by GeneralVimpffen. Following the‘review, aAba—\

tellion of volunteers was to be formed, to join at Evreux the
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federalist army that Waé going to march on Paris. Only seven-
teen men responded to the call.

- That efternoon Charlotte returned to the HBtel de 1'In-
tendance for thg letter'fokbuperret itkat Parbaroux had prom—
ivsed her. The 1etter was not yet written,’but Barbardux prom-
Nised to send it to Ler therext morning.

On the morning of the 29th of July she told Mme. de Brethe~
‘Ville that she wae golng to Argentan to see her father. At
theswro time, she wrote & letter to the lotte saying that she
had declded to seek in anlcnd the $e¢ce and helpineuu which
were no longe& to be hed in Tranoe. 17) Then she sald good-bye
to Mue. de Breohevzlle anddepartea, teking T rom her ¢pem a bundle
'of o]othirg, s ome sketch o and drawing materiels, and the pace-
port tiat she had procured in April when she had made her last
visit to Argentan, end which hadbeen counter-signed for the
journey to Paris. On the last etepe of the stairs leading into
the cou:ty&pd, she found Louis Lunel, & boy of about fifteen
years of age, the son of a joiner wbo'had his shop on the ground
» floor of the Crand Menoir. To him she gave the drawing m?tegiéls
and kissed rim, saying thet e woﬁid never see her again. 1

Ve learn the detailscof Charlofte's trip‘to Peris from the
letter that she wrote to Barbaroux during her imprisonment. Her
truveling companions were Montagnards and staunch supporters
of Marat. One of them fell dsspurately in love with her, and

insisted on asking her father for ner hunde
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It was about noon on Thur sday, July 11th, when the diligence
stopped before the bureau dés-Messageries, rue Notre-Dame-
des—Vietoires. There Charlotte was given ; cerd with tle ad=-
dress of the Hotel de la Providence, rué des Vieux—Augustins,
¥0.19, kept by Louise Grollier. She}had herself driven to
this hotelvﬁhere she was given rCom number 7.

" Thile the porter, Frangois Feuillard, was making her bed,
he irguired about the political situstion at Caen. Charlotte
Cordey snswered that "solxante mille hommes marchaient sur.
Paris'et qu'elle avait meme rencontré, suryla route, des{{g?upes
en nombre considérable, se dirégean; vers la Normendie." ,‘
S8he then asked what people in(Paris'thougbt of Marat. "Les pa-—
triotes 1l'estiment beaucoup, mals les aristocrates le déteséiglﬂ
he answéred, and informed her that Mafat'was i1l &nd Lad not,
for some time, been able to go t6 the Convention. This news ne—
cessitated a change in Charlotte's plana,,forrit pad been hefn \
intention to assussinete Morat "sur la cime de la Montagne." o

On entering her room at the Lotel, she had exp ressed the de-
cire to rest, but suddenly changing hér miﬁd,-she asked the way
10 thé rue Saint-Thomas-dutTouvre, where the deputy Lauze Du-
perret lived. She weht directly to his house, but found that he
was not at home. Leaving with Duperret‘s daﬁghters, the pack-—
age of letters sent by Barbaroux, she promised to return in the

evening.

On the occasion of her second visit, Duperret himself re-
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ceived her.  After having4answered his questions,ééncerning
his Gircndin friends at Caen, she asked him to édcompany her
to the office of the Minister .of the Interior. It was arrang—.
ed that the depuﬁy’should cell for her at her hotel the hexf
morning. She wrote her name on the back of the card béaring
the address‘bf the Hotel de la Pro#idence, dnd gave 1t to him.

The next morning at 16:00, Duperret kept his appointment.
But Garat, the Ministervof the Interior, coudd rnot réceive
them at that time. Théy were ddvised to return at eight o'elock
in the évening. In the meantime, hoWever, Puperret had fallen
under the suspicion of tie Montagne, and his papers were seized.
Hekwent back to Charlotte's hotel to tell her that his endorse—
ment of ber mission would, under the circumstances, be more -
rarmful than useful and that, moreover, since she had no DOWE -
of-attorney from Mylle de Forbin, it woulddoubtless be of little
use for her to see the Minieter. When e asked oﬁ what day she
would return to Formendy, shésaid thet s he had not yet decided,
but that hewould soon hear fom her. She requested him particu-
larly not to come back to see her théxnext day,randtégged him
to leave Paris and join his friends at Caen. "M?gq%oste est &
Paris; je ne dois pas 1l'abandonner,” he replied. -

Charlotte Corday spent a large part of that afternoon writ-—

ing Ler "Adresse aux Frangais, aniedds lois et de la palx," in

which she attempted to justify the act she was about do commit
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| | | | : (23)
and to incite the pubtlicte revolt against the Eontagne.

Before six o'clock on the morning of July 15th, Chear-
lotte left the Hotel de la Providence and directed her steps
to the gardens of the Palais-Royzl. There, she strolled for
some time wrile waiting for the shops to open.b About half
past seven, she entered a cutief's shop and bought a‘largé
kitchen knife with a dark wood handles, enclosed in a shagreen
sheath. Shetalso boughkt & paperwhi?E relaféd W the judgment
of the nine Orléanais, "assallants” . of Léonard Pourdon, an
admirer and disciple of Marat.

There is‘some uncertainty aste her next move. fome his—
torians say that she returned to_the hotel, and remainéd theré
until eleven o'elock; others assert thet she went directly td
tﬁe Place des VietoYires, where she took & cab and asked to
be driven to M&r&t's«house: Chaflotte herself, in her tridy ad-
mitted only two visits, the first "vers les onze heures ou ?2g§
Lheures et demie," aud tlesecond "vers sept heures et demie." -
Other witnesses declared that she was there three times, but
differ &s to the hours.

"A en croire la déposition de Simonne Evrard devant le
juge Toucault, elle se présenta d'abord vers midi. 'Cette méme
Personne revint une seconde fois le méme jour, meis la dépo—
sante ne la vit pas.' La troisieme visite eut lieu 'sur 1es

huit heures'.

» . .
"Le femme Pain déclara qu'elle etait venue 'deux fois
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différentes dans la matinée'et que 'la seconde fois elle était
montée et descendue touﬁe seule. '

"Jearnette Maréehal, lz cuisiniire de Marat, la ¥it le
matin' entre neuf et dix heures' et le soir 'entre sept et |
huit heures.’»

"Quelque vagues que soient ces témoign&ges, on peut, croy-
ons-nous, admettre que Charlotte Cordey se présenta trois fois
chez Maret et que la seconde vicite, gue la fiére‘jeune fille
passe sous silerice pour ne pas paraftre avoir feibli un instant
dens le réslisation de ses projets,(éu? avoir lieu vers trois
ou quatreAheures de 1'epres-midi." =0 | |

A4 leest, we do know that sometime before roon she pre-
sented herself &t number 30, rue des Ccrdeliers, where Maret
lived. In spite of the protest of the portiére that "1'ami du
peuple" would recelve no oné, she mounted rapidly o the s=second
story, and entered tle ante-chamber of Marat's apartment. Si-
monne Tvrard, Moral's mistress, refused tc admit her.

Returning to the HOtel de la Providence, Charlotte wrote
and mdded the following lktter: |

"Citoyen,

"Jlarrive de Ceen; vbtre&mour pour la patrie me fait pré—
sumer que vous connaitrez avec pleieir les milheureux Evéne-
ments de cette pertie dela République‘ Je me présentepa; chez
vous vers une heure. Ayez la bonté-de me recevoir et de m'ac—

. . “ ~ )
corder un moment d'entretien, je vous nettrai a menme de rendre
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. o (an)
un grand service a la France."
At half pest seven in the evening, she returned to Ma-

rat's Louse, armed with a secoud letter, which she Entended
to leave in czce ghe was agaln refused admittance.(gs) The
portiére, & woman nemed Pain, was in é'foom adjoining Marat's
bathroom,»foi&%g the last edition of "1'Ami du Peuple." She
would not allow Charlotte to enter, and’stood Barpingvthe pas-
sgge until Simonne Evrafd, hearing the dispute, went to ask
Marét if he woﬁld consent to see thekvisitor. Ma.rat, who had
just received Charlotte's léer, replied in the affirmative,
and the girl was ushered into his presence. He was in his
'bath, for there alone could he find relief from the eczema
#hioh tormented him,k Clothed in a ragged sleeveless gown, he
was writing. A board laid €.Ceross the bath-tub served as a |
desk.

On Charlotte's entrance, he hastened to inguire sabout the
‘stete of affairs at Caen. She replied thét the eighteen Gir-
ondin deputies, in accord with the department administfators,
were ruling the town, and gathering fécruits for the army, whicl
was to march'against Paris. He asked for the numes of -the fugi-
tive deputies and of the administrators, and wrote them as she
dictated. This done, he declared that~before long he would hLave
them 8l1 guillotined at Peris. These words seamed to decide

his fate, for at that moment Charlotte seized the knife hidden

in nEK vosom, and plunged it inte his breast. He uttered only
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cne cry: "A moi, ma cheére amie! A moil"

Charlotte Cordsy attempted to flee through the ante-
chamber, but Leurent Bas, a messenger who had just bréught
the paper for the pfinting of "l'ami du Peuple", seized a
"chair and knocked hef down. Simonne‘ﬁvrard and Jesnnette
Marééhal; hearing Maret's ery; had dashed in and, after
tranpling thelassassin under foot, hastened to the‘side of
the wounded men. |

The "prihcipa1~locafaire“ of the house was & surgeon—
dentist named Deléfondée: Hearing cries, he rushed to the
scene. He made & compress, bandaged thew ound, and helgped
carry Marat to his bed. But;the latter was already dead.

In the neantime, the noise had drawn a crowd. Philibert
Guellerd, the commissoire de police of the section, soon ar-
rived, and proceededkto an e;mmination of the prisoner.

After giving her name, age, and resideﬂce,‘Charlotte stat-
ed the time of her afriwzlfin Paris, énd declared ﬁhat she had
come "sans aucun dessein." 8She made no attempt to deny that
shéﬁ%illed Marat. |

"Interpellée de nous déclarer ce guli l'avait déterminée
a commettre cet assassinat? |

"A-répondu qu'aysnt vu le guerré civile sur le point de
s'allumer dens toute la Trance, et persuadée que Marat était
le principal auteur dene désastre, elle awit préféré & faire

le sacrifice de sa vie pour sauver son peys."
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"A glle observé qu'il ne parait pas neturel gu'elle ait
congu céfdessein exéerable d ¢ son propre mouvement ef intep-
pellée de nous déclarer les personnes gu'elle fréquente le
plus ordinairement dans la ville de Caen?‘ |

"A\répondu qu'elle n'a communigué son projet & ame gui
ViVEeosas ‘ '

~"A elle observé' gue....il y a tout lieu de croire aN!

qu’elle n'a quittd' la ville de Caen que pour venir commettre cet
assassinat dans‘la\personne du citoyen Marat?

"A répondu gu'il est vraivqu'elle avait ce dessein, et
gu'elle nzgggait pas quitte Caen si elle n'eflt envie de 1l'ef-

3¢
fectuer." )

Agked to glve an sccount of her movements since her ar-
rival in Paris, she did so, but carefully avoided mentioning
her oonnection‘with Lauze De Perret.

"A-FElle observé, aprés avoireonsommé le crime, si ellé
n'e pes cherohé & s'évader par la fenétre? . |

"A répondu que non, qu'elle‘n’a en aucun dessein de s'éX—

vader par la fenétre, mis gu'elle se fdt en alée par la porte

‘ (20) |
si on ne s'y fug opposé."
| They searched her, and found in her pockets, some money,
e silver thimble, & spool of‘whiie thread, a trunk key,.a gold
weteh, her pessport, and the letter addressed to Marst that she

had intended to leave if she had not been admitted. Hidden in

her bosom were her birth certificate, her "Adresse sux Frangeis!”
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and the sheatl: of the knife with which she had commitied the
murder. | |

Toward the end of the examimation, tiere arrived four
members of the Committee of Ceneral Security,Maure, Legendre,
" Ohabot and Drouct. | | |

'These prQéeedings Lhe.d occuplied the entire evening, To-

wards midnight’Charlotte Corday wes taken into the room wlere
the corpse lay, and for the first time,’she seemed agitated;
"Eh Bien, ouiy c'eét moi qui 1l'ai tué", she said.(gl)

At two ©'clock in the morning, Drouet and,chabot tock .
charge of lier to conduct her to the prison of 1'Abtaye. A
largé crowd was still assembled at the-dOOr;'and when Char-
lotte appegred, there arose such a cry that she thought she
wa.s éoing to be torn fo pleces by the mob. ©&he fainted. BPBut
Drouét gspoke to the péople end succeeded in ce lming them. When
Charlotte regained consciousness, she eﬁpressed surprise at
b‘eing} still alive. |

In the meantime, her room at the Hotel de la Providence
had been searched. Besides articles of clothing, the repoft
mentions 1wo scraps of paper éon{ainiig, in her own handwrit-
ing tle following addresses:

"Citofen Duperret, rue Seint—Thoms s—du-Louvre, No 48;

"M. 0dille, rue Gaillon, No Z0; le citoien Guillot, portier:

MU, Darnouville, rue Faint¥Antoiné, Yo &;

flme Grollier, Ldtel de la Providence, rue des Vieux-—
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Augustins, No 19, pres de la rue de la Victoire."
Thinking trat the addfesses;might indicate aceompiices
of tlhe assdssin, the authorities made haste to follow up
these poséible clues. Guillot,‘tle portier at no; 30, rue
Gailion, was guestioned, Eut he declared that he knew no
éuch person as M. 0dille, and that he wes totally ignoraﬁtv
of the wboleyaffair. Lauze de‘Perfet wes arrested, as well
as Fauchet, Pishqp of the Calvados; and dgputy to the Cdnven—
tion.
At the Abbaye, Chaflotte Corday was assigned to the
room which had been cceupied berme Roland and later by Pris-
sot. Two gendarmes were stationed in her cell night and day.
She rrotested against this the first day, and renewed rer
complaint in a letter, written tre 15th, to the Committee of
General Security: ‘
"Puisque J'el enoore'quelques'instants é vivre, pourais-—
Je espérer citoyens gue vous e permettrés dé‘me faire ﬁeindre,
je voudrais laisser cette margue de mon souvenir & mes amis,
d'ailleurs comme on chérit 1l'image des Bons Citoyené, la cuk-
viosité fait quelquefols rschercher ceux des grands criminels,
ce qui sert & perpdtuer 1'horreur des crimes, el vous daignés
faire attention‘é me demande, Je vous prie de m'enwyer demain
un peintre en Migni&tﬁre, je vous renouvelle celle de me lais-
ser dormikr seule, croyés, Jje vous prie, 8 toute me reconnais-
sance.

Marie Corday.
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"J'enteuds sans cesse'crierkdams la rue larestation de
Tauchet mon oomplicé, Je ne 1'ai jameis vu que par la feh-
etre et 11 y & plus de deux ans, Je ne 1! alme ni l'estime,
Je lui ai toujours cru une imegination exaltoe et nulle fer-
mexe de caractere, c'est 1'homme au monde a qui J'aurails
1e moins confié un projet. 8i cette déeclaration peut lul
se:vir,‘j'en‘qertifie la véritd. ‘

/ Corday."

On the 14%h shembegan a letter to Barbaroux, whiclh she
dated "Aux prisons de 1'Abbaye, dans la 01~deVant cha@%iﬁ de
Brissot, le second jour de la preparation a la paix."

In it, she releted the details of hér Journey to Paris,
discussed serenely her crime and its conséquences, spoke iron-
ieally of Ler judges and thelr atiempt to discover accomplices
for her, and gave messagés for a‘few of her friends.

e spent part of her time at the Abbaye mending her clothes
which had been damaged et the time of her arrest, and even mede
g new cap to wear at hepr trial. She also copied Girondist songs
which sre distributed among her fellow—prisoners.

Farly on the morning of the 16th, Montané, presidént of tfe
Revolutionary Tribunal, and the Jjudges TFoucault and Roussillon
began the exemination of tie witnesses. At eleven o'elock, Char-
lotte Corday was broughiﬁkfova Montané in one of tie rooms OF
the Paleis de Justice, and subjected to an interrogatory ﬁpon
the detalls and the motives of the assassiimztion.

Unable to believe tiat a person of her age and sex dould
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plan and execute such a orime'unaided,‘Montané insisted that
she must have had aocomplices, fo which she replied:

"Je n'ai dit mes’pfojets a personne; je n'ai pes cru
tuer un hommié mais une béte férece gui dévorait tous les .
Frangais." (e5)

Acked if ste had not had the intention of assessinating
the Minister of the Interior, she answered:

"Non, Jje ne le’croy&ié pas assexz dangeréux pour cela."(ss)

9till seeking to find out who lad instigated the crime,
the President questicned her as to her relations with the Gipr-
ondist deputies at Caen. She told of her visits to Barbaroux
and of her conversations with him and the othefvdepﬁties. in
regard to the newspapers ghe was in the habit of reading, shte
dgolared:

"Jtétais abonnée seulement au'joufnal de Perlet, mais j'ai
1un quelquéfois Gorsas, 'le Courrier frangals', '1e'00urrie}
universel', et plus de cing cents autreé ?rochupes pour et con-—-
tre la Révoiution, dens tous les genres."KSV)

She denled vigorbusly the testimony of certain witnesses who
inéisted they had seen her at the Convention the evening of the
11th. Her letter to Barbaroux was read.

Finally, Montané esked her if she lad a counsel, and she
choée Doulecet de Pontécoulant, the deputy from Ceen to the Con-

vention, whom she lad known since her convent days. The same

d&YQ the Public Prosecutor, Touquier-Tinville wrote to Doulcet
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“de Pontécoul&nt, informing him of this chéice.

"The hearing ended,_Charloite Cordavaas teken back 1o
the Abbayezvind a few hours later, transfeirred to the Con~
1oiergeris. = That evening éhekfinished her letter to Bar-
baroux and wrote one to her father. (
On the 17th of July, 8t eight b'clock in ihewmorning,
~ the prisoner appeared before the Révolutionary Tribunal. After
the Jury had been swornm, énd the usual questioné askéd con—
cerning the name, age, and reéidence of tie accused, Monfané
inquired if her counsel was present. She replied:

"J'avais choisi un aml, mels je'n'en al point entendu par—
ler depuis. Apparemment il n‘a'pas eu le oouragé d'accep ter ma
défense."(40) _ |
| The President appcinted Chaveau-Lagarde to fulfill this
duty. Tie accusation was read and the first witness called. It
was Simounne Evrard. Charlotte, moved by Ler sobs, interr%pted
her testimony with the cry, "Ouil c'est moi gui 1'ai tue" “)

Questioned on the details of Ler crime, the prisoner re-—
plied as in ier previous hearings. Laurent Bas, Jeanhette Maréf
chal, the Pain woman and Catherine Evrard, Simonne's sister, were
called one after the other, and at the end of each deposition,
Charlotte Corday sald "C'est vrai." B

Ld .
"J'al tme un homme," she declared, "pour en sauver cent

nmille. Ctétalt d'ailleurs un accepareur d'argent. On a ar—
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rété un homme & Caen qui en achetait pour lui. J'Stais rd—
Puvlicaine bien avant le Révolution, et n'ai jamais manqué
d'énergie.......
"——Ftoit-ce a un pr§tre assermenté ou insermenté que vous
alllez & coufesse & Cuen?
"——Jde n'allais nl aux uns ni aux autres....
"—Croyez-vous &volir tué tous les Marat?
. . (42)
"——Celui-la mort, les autres auront peur, peut—-etre."
"Le Putletin du tribunel révolutlonnaire éteint ce trait
) . ,(43)
de feu. I1 fait repondre a harlotte Corday: 'Non, assurement'"
"hen they presented to the prisoner tlie knife she had used
sta turned herp head, and pushing awey the instrument ?22% her
hand, ~ried: "Ovi, je le reconrals, je le reconnais." )
Touquiler-Tinville remarked that the»éhuracy with whieh Chap-
lotte Corday Lad struck the fatal blow, showed her proficiency
in crime.
"Oh! le monstre!l™ she cried,"il me prend pour un sssassin!"
"Tette réponse, telle qu'un coup de foudre, termine la se-—
45)
ance," says Chaveau-Lagarde.

Charlotte's letters to lier father and to Barbarousg were
read. She asked tle Tribunal to Forward them to their respective
eddresses, but this was never done. They were merely jdined to
the docureénts releiing to the triel.

The Public Prosecutor demanded the sentence of death.

The position of the counsel for thedeferce was very difficult,
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to say the least. The President had advised him to plead in-
sanity, but Chaveau-Lagarde, kunowing that nothing could save
his client, saw in this only a means of humiliating her. Ac-
cordingly, he limited himself to a few simple words: |

"L'accusée avoue avec sang-froild 1l'horridble attentat
qu'elle & commis; elle en avoue avece sang-froid la longue pré—
méditation; elle en avoue les cipcbnstanCes les plus affreuses;
en un mot, elle avoue tout, et ne cherchs méme pas a se Jus¥—-

tifier. Voila citoyens jurés sa défense tout entiere.

"Ce calme imperturbeble et cette entdere abnégation de
soi—mgﬁe, Qui n'annoncent aucun remords, et, pour ainsi dire,
en face de la mort mfme, ce calme, cette abnégation, sublimes
sous un rapport, ne sont pas dans la nature; ils ne peuvent
s'expliguer gque dens l'exaltation du fanatisme politigue gqui
lui a mis le poignard a la main. Et c'est & fous; citoyens
jurés, a juger de quel poids doit €tre cette c onsidergtion mox-

Yele dans la balance de le justice. Je m'en rapporte a votre
prudenoe."(45)

After deliberating a quarter of an hour, the Jury returned
a unaniméus verdict of guilty. One by one, the judges %oted

‘aloud for her execution, and then the sentence of death was
read.

Charlotte Corday aeked to speak to her counsel, and when
this request wes granted, she said:

"Monsisur, Je vous remercie bien du courage avec lequel
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vous m'avez défendue d'une maniére digne de vous et de moi.

Ces messieurs me counfisquent mon bien; mais je veux vous donner
un plus grand témoignage de ma reconnalssance: Je veus prie

de payer pour moi ?e que Je dois a la prison, et je compte sur
votre générosité." ok

The debt smounted tq 36 livres. Chaveau-Llagarde paid 1t
the following day.

On her return to the Conciergerie, Charlotte found the
concierge Richard and his wife waiting for Ler. "J'avais es--
péré que nous déjeunerions ensemble;" she said,"mais les Jjuges
m'ont retenu le-bas ei l?nggemps qu'il faut m'excuser de vous
avolr manqué de parole." +°

Abbé Tothringer, one of the constitutional clergy, came to |
administer the consolations of religion, but she refused hie
services. "—-Remerciez ceux qui ont eu l'attention de vous en-—
voyer. dJde leur en sals gré, mzis Jje n'al pas Lesoin de.votre

. (49)
ministere."

A few minutes later, the peinter Hauer arrived. At ChLar-
lotte's request, he had been given permission to finish the
portrait he hed begun that morning at the trial. She asked
him to meke a small copy of the picture and send it to her fam-—.
ily, whiech Le leater did.

The execution of the sentence was being delayed by a quar-
rel between Montané and Fougquier-Tinville. The latter accused

the President of heving changed tl.e third guestion that he had

given 1im.to be put to the Jury, by substituting the words "in-

1
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tentions criminelles et préméditées"z g?r "intentiorns cri=—
minelles et contre-révolutionnaires". 5‘ .Absorbed in this

dispute, he had forgotten to sign the order of execution.

Then Sanson, the exeéutiomer,_finally arrived at the Cou-~
clergerie, Charlotte was writing & note on the leaf of & book.
She asked to be alloyed to finish it. The note was destin-
ed for Doulcet de Pontéooulant, and read as follows:

"Le citoyen Doulcet de Pontécoulant est un léche, dlavoir
refusé de me défendre lorsque la chose était si facile. Celui
qul 1'a fait s'en est aequitté evec toute la dignité possible.
de 1lul en conserve ma reéonnaissance Jusqgu'au derni?g ?oment.

Marie de Cordey." o

This accusation was unjust. Doulcet de Pontécoulant hed
not received Touquier-Tinville's notificatioﬁ, end knew nothing
of the affalr until after Charlotte Corday's execution.

Cutting elock of her hair, Charlotte presented it to
Hever in token of her gratitude, and when Sanson had cut the
rest, sle gave it to Richard for his wife. £he donned, hepr-
gelf, tie red gown, which was tle mark of an sssassin, and
those present say that it mede her beauty even more remuarkeble.

An immense crowd was walting outéide. They greeted the
prisoner with savage cries, wnd despite the thunderstorm wiich
was threatening, escorted her to the guiilotine.

Charlotte mounted the tumbril with & firm step, and re—

fusing the chair offered her by Sanson, remained standing dur-
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ing the entire Journey. The crowd hindered the progress of
tlie procession so much that it took two full hours to reach
the guillotine. Camille Desmoulins, Danton and Robeepilerre
were watching from a window in the rue Seint-Honoré. Amm g
the spectators that lined tke streets, many hurled insults at
the prisoner, but there were aléo~many sympa.thetic faces.

When they entered the Plzce de la Révolution, Sansoﬁ
stepped in front of Charlotte Corday so that éhe might not
gee the guillotine, bu} she leaned forward, saying,ZJlai bien
le droit d'étre curieuse, Jje n'en avais jamais vu." %%) She
turned pale at sight of the instrument, but soon regained her
color.

When the tumbril stopped, she alighted, and mounted un-
aided the steps of the scaffold. Before Sanson could reach
the top, Tirmin, the assistant, had torn away Charlotte's fi-
chu. She herself laid her head under the knife, and Senson
gave the signal.

fegros, & carpenter who had been at work repesiring the
guillotine,(g;gked up the head, and helding it up before the
spectetors, slapred it several times. Tye—witnesses asserted
that the face blushed at the insult. This brutel action
brought en indignant murmur from the crowd, and thg Revelution-
ary Tribunal serntenced Legros to a week's imprisonment.

Among the throng that followed Crharlotte Cordey to the

guillotine, was & young Germen named Adam Lux, formerly & deputy
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from Mayence, sent to request the annexation of that eity
to France. Watching tie courageous girl during her jour—
ney from the Conciergerie to the Place de la Révolution,
he conceived for her &n ardent and almost supernatural
love. "L'écha,faud eteit devenuupour l1ui un autel; il ne
souliaitait plus que d'y etre immol% ?%rés celle gui ve-
£
neit d’y accomplir son sacrifice." °
Two days later, Adam Lﬁs published & pamphlet in preise
of his heroine, which Le terminated with the demand thet
"agu meéme lieu de sa mort, L'immortelle Charlotte Corday ait

une statue avec cstte inscripti?n
-
o

J
LI oo

"Plus grande gque Prutusi"
Arrested immediately, he wes net executed till the

4t of Fovember.



Chapter I.

Charlotte Corday in Esquiros's Hovel.

Alphonse E®squiros was born at Peris in 1814. He began
his literary career with a volume of poetry, "les Hirondelles,"
published in 18%4. This was followed by two novels: "le
Magicien", in 1837, and "Charlotte Corday", in 1840. The
latter is generally conceded to be his mesterpiece, and was
received very enthusiastically by the public.

In the same year, however, he published "1'Evencile du
peuple", a philosoplical and democraticcommentary on‘thevlife
of Christ, for which he was sentenced to eight months impri-
sonment end a fine of 500 frence. While in prison, he wrote
snother book of verse, "les Chants du Prisonnier", in which
sociclistic ideas are freely expressed. In 1847 appeared
"l’Histoire des Montesnards."

In 1850, Tsguiros ﬁas elected to the Legislative Assembly
from the department of Sasne—et-LOire. There, he belonged to
the party of tle extreme left. After the "coup d'Etat", he
wes exiled and went to Fngland, where he remained until 1869.
Returning to France, he was again elected deputy, this time
from the “ouches—-du-Rhone.

After the establishment of the Third Republic, he was
sprointed administretor of the Pouches-du-Rhone. On the 132tk
of October 1870, he suspended the publicution of the Gazette
du Midi, & legitimist paper, and decreed ithe dissolution of

the Jesuit congregation &t Marseilles. Gumbette promptly an—
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nulled these meusures, sand when M. Esguiros refused to re-
sign, he sent another man to replace hin.

In February 1871, Esquiros wes ounce more elected to
the Legislative Assenbly, and in’1876 became & senator. He
died in the same year at Versailles.

- Tsquiros's novel "Chérlotte Cordey", was published in
1840, witr a second edition in 1841.

Althoﬁgh the character of Charlotte Corday is treated
sympathetically, tlie primary purpose of the book ssems to be
to glorify Marat, who, the author believes, has been mis-—
Judged. "Cet Lomme anathéme, agi prend sur sa téte maudite
et calomniée tout l'odieux des mesures de sang, ne nousk
semble pas evoir 6té compris jusqu‘é ce jour. GQuelgue chose
auralt menqué é(la)Révolution si le Providence n'avait pas
inventé Murat.” > The first volume is little more ﬁlan a
series of incidents intendsd to set forth Marat's political
opinions and to show his benevolence and the s xtent of‘his
influence. D‘Almérus'says 0% the Look: "Ce roman est a la
fois un pamphlet et un manifeste, et l'apoloéie de Maratvle
remplit de la sremiére a la derniere page, avec un parti pris

](57) '
trop visgible."

In his prefsce, the author relates the manner in which he
obtained his materisl. Tirst he made a visit to Caen and to
Ligneries, the bpgMAthplace of charlotte Corday. Fe saw the
Grend Menoir and the Abbaye—aux—-Tames, and tealked with seversl
0ld people who, in their youth, had known the assassin of

Marat,
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Returning to Paris, he went to see Mara+t's aged sister,
and Peom her obtained information about "l'ami du peuple.”

In addition to this, he read & vest number of pamrblets
and papere published during the Revolution. "Il Yy a main-
tenant & Versailles un avocat, M. Deschiens, qui posse_de
plusieurs chambrées de feuilles publiques,(gg)nous avons.
promens nos doigts patiznts et fureteurs." o |

Thie preface contains also & brief account of the life
of Charlotte Corday up to the arrival of the Girondist de-—
puties &t Caeun.

The first volume of the novel proper deals almost ex—
clusively with Maret, ClLarlotte Cordey esprearing only once.
Fech incident, very loosely connected with the ones that pre-
cede and follow it, 1e intended to show scme trait of Ma—
ret's charscter. Altlough there are doubtless a nuliber of
errors in this first volume, wé are concerned here only with
the parts of tle novel that involve Charlotte Corday. The
rest will merely be briefly summerized.

Tre story opens with the arrival at Versailles of Count
Henri d= Pelzunce, in June 1784. He was a young men from Nop-
mandy who had come to be presented at court; One night, while
walking about the streets, he was se% vpon by thieves, who
Overpowered him, leaviug Lim unconscious and severely wounded.

On regeining consclousnzss, he found that ssveral days

hed elapsed. A yousg doctor, the piysician to the body-guard
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of the Comte d'Artcis, had taken him to his own home and
cared for Lim.

"hen Henri de Pelzunce had recovered from his wound
and was ready to leave, he insisted on reimbursing his
host for the expense he had caused him, but the latter re-
fused to accept enything, expressing in strong terms his
contempt for gold. The young count learned that his bene-
factor's name vwas Marat.

The second chepter leaves Belzunce, and relates the.
events of the 13th and 14th of July, 1789, at Paris. On
tlie evening of the 15£h, at the Pent-Neuf, a cavwalry of-
ficer wes essuring the people of the support of the dra-—
/goons and hussarde. Marat, stepping forward, demanded that
he and his regiment surrender their arms to the people. Their
refusal made it evident to the assemtled crowd that they
were not to be trusted. Thus Maraet was beginning to show
himgelf the friend and champion of the people.

Tliie next incident is included, probably, for the purpose
of setling forth the disposition of the citizens of Caen. In
1720, two regiments were stationed in that town. One of them,
tre Artois regiment was popular with the people; the other,
the Pourbon regiment, wes very much disliked. Henri de Bel—
zunce, an officer in the latter, was particularly heted for
his royalist sympathies.

On the night of the 11th of pugust, an officer of the Bour—
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bon regiment wes killed by a beurgecis sentinel. It was
rumored that the garrison was going to attack the tcwn.

The extited citizens, aroused out of their eleep, and having
only a confused ldee of what had happened, rushed to the
ohateau, selzed the arms they found tkere, and started for
the barracks. The Ecurbon regiment awcke to find itself
erxerounded by tie mob and mensced by cannon. EHenri de Bel-
zunce, unwilling to Jjeopardize the lives of his soldiers by
a futile resistance, surrendered hLimself. Protected by a
detachment of national guards, he was taken to the ehéteau.

Put the next morning, tle mob forced wh ¢nirance into thi

n

girergheld.  Belzunce acked to be taken before the comité at
the hotel-de-ville. This request was granted, but as the
cortégé storped & moment in front of the hateléde—ville, a
shot was fired, and Henri de Peﬁ&nce fell. The mob ruste
upen his dead body and tore 1t to pieces.

Ve now return to Marat. The month of feptember, 1721,

\ inthe ,

found "l'ami du peuple” cellar of the old cordelier convent
at Paris, writing incessantily articlee of whiek the purrpose
wae to inclite the people to further revolt. Pursued by Lis
enemice, he had been obliged 10 corceal hLimself.

From time to time, a girl came 1o see him. It was Ma-
demoicedle Fleury, an actress whom Marat had formerly be-
friended at Versailles.

One night, berely escering errest by fleeing from Lis
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underground retreat through a secret paesage,

peuple”" went to Versailles.

there, he finally fell exhausted

"l'ami du

Unable to find a hiding-plece

in the street. Just

tlien, & prleet heppened along and velunteered te give him

refuge for tre night. It was
emong his colleagues on account

ions,.

priest, but on the latter's insisterce, he went.

&
the cure Passel, unpopular

of Lis revolutionary opin-

Meret at first refused to go tbh the house of &

He and

»
tle cure discovered that they lad many ideess i1 common.

Tie vext morning Marat set

out for the coast of Xop-

mendy, where lLe hoped to Tind some vessel that would carry

him to Erngland in the night.

Ag he wee approsching Ceen

tiful young girl. Marat was so
80 ragged that she tock him for
him money. On learning that he

of the Revolution, sle directed

friends, who often sheltered fugitives.

Charlotte.

one morning, Le met & beau-
unkempt and his clothing was

e beggar and started to give
was a refugee and a victim
him to fhe Lome of one of her

flLe gave her name as

The next morning, while strolling about the town, Marat

heppened to pess hefore the church of faint-Jean just as mess

was ended. He entered with the

intention of displaying his

disdein for this "restéde superstition”, but sesing the girl

of the evening before, with her sged aunt, he chenged his mind.

As soor s she had left the church, Marat, drawn by an irre-
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sisteble forcezf%§proached the pew she had occupled, and
Q

kne@led there.

The.t evening Le wert to Courselles, where he made &l ra—
né@ents witl. & boatmen to take him to Englend. He was on
tl.e point of entering the boat when, suddenly seized with
the realization of whatl he was leaving, he gave up his plan
and returned to Paris. After the imprisomment of the king
on the 10th of August, 1792, Merat came out of hiding end
soon wes elected as deputy to the Convention.

The purpose of the next ineldent is to briung out Ma-—
rat's devotio: to the public cause and hie boldness in de-
nouncing those whom te consgidered traitors to that cause.
Talma, the sctor, wes glving e party at which a number of
tlie leading CGirondins were present. The guest of Lonor
wes CGeneral Dumeuriez. When the enjoyment was at its heicrt,
Merat entered sbruptly and demended a privete interview
with Tumeovriez. Trrough the closed door, the other guests
could hear encugh to known that Marat was accusing the gen-—
erel of cruelty to his soldiers and of tfeasén to the Repub-
iic. This ew nt cast & sinlster shadow over the party.

Hoving painted Maret ae absolutely feurless belore a men
et poverful as Dumouries, Esguiros wished to show that his
hero was, on the other hand, the friend of the poer and the op-
pressed. He tells that, one day, Marat undertcok the deferse

of en ¢ld men who had been driven by hunger to commit a theft.
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Sociéty, he meinteined, was responsible for crimes of this
sort, end ke made such an eloqueﬁt appeal that the prison-
er wae set at liberty.

According to Esquiroe, friendship wés {o Marat a.ne—
cesslity, but the friends whom he loved and trusted most Wefe
not elways loyal. Thus we see Marat unburdening his heart
one evéning to Dénton, Oémille Desmoulins gnd PBarbarous, for
whom hLe félt an egpecisl affection, and the véry next day,
being denounced by Barbaroux in the Convention, as an fom—
enter of riots and & sower of discord.

Such a cloée ffien&ship between Maret and Bérbaroux
would be, io say tﬁe least, extraordinary, and ii is very
doubtful that it ever existed.

It is true tlhat some time prior 10 the Revoiutidn, Bar-
baroux had taken a coubse in optics under Marat. The fo}mér\
sayé in lis memoirs: #n 1788, J'levaisifait un cours d'optigue
sous Marat; Je l'ai'apprécié comme savant;~je dois le faife
connaitre comme politique. ﬁn-de mes éorits sur le rébellion
d'Arles tomba dans ces mains; il m'éerivitlﬁour ne:complimeny—~

ter, et m'invita & l'eller voir. Je m'y rendis. Il demeurait
slors vie—a—vis le café Richard, dens la rue Saint-Honoré.
Je reconnus bien mon maitre d'optique; meis quand Jje l'eﬁtendis
je erus qu'il avait perdu la téte. Il me dit sérieusement
que les Trangsils n'éteient gue de mssquins révolutionnairee, et

que IRl seul aveit des moyens de Tonder la liberté. Je voulus
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presseuntlr le grand iomme, Je pérua avide‘de ses insﬁructiens.
—1Donnez-moi, me dit—il, deux cents Napolitains‘armésvde
poignards et portant a leur bres.gaucke un manchon en guise

de bouolier,‘?vgd eux Jje parcourral la Franée et je férai le.
révolution.'" 50)

There 1s & considerable difference between the relation-—
ship thét Barbaféux indicates and the warm friendship that
Esquires piofures. | |

The next incident is probably intended to stow the con-
flict in Marat's heart between Lis natural inclinstion to-
werds mercy and his conoéption of his duty to France and the
Revolution. On the eme bf the day‘whenAMarat waé te speak
for or against the condemration of Louis XVI, Mademoiselle
Fleury begged Lim to use his influence to save the king. Marat
spent most of the night compesing akspeeéh in defense of the
latter, but the next morning Danton came to accompany him to
the GQonvention and persuaded him to changé it. ’ | |

The fbllqwing chapter desls with Marat's arrest oh Apfilb
the 12th, 1793. He W&sfchapged by the Giro;ﬁins with having
inclted the pecple to break into the sghops of merohants who
refused to glve up their wares and with havihg»adVOC&ted a dic-
tatorship and a system of terror. He defeﬁded himself so el-
oquently, by setting forth the reasons for Lis actions, tLat the

court returned a verdict of not guilty, and tLe people bore

Lim in triumph to the Convention.

On the 31st of Ma&, Marat organized and directed the in-
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surrection which brought about the expulsion of the Giron-
dins from the couvention. 7 |

The second velume, w!ich deals more particularly with
Charlotte‘ﬁorday, begins with the arrivaﬁpf fhe fugitive de-
‘puties at Caen. Barbaroux spoke every Sunday at the old
ckhurch of l'AbbayeQaux-Hommes. Charlotte Corday was always
present.‘ The two were vefy mucl attracted to each other.
Theyfrequently met &t the Lomes of commen friends. He even
went to see Ler a‘number of times, and they ofteXn wélked
togetlier under the trees of the Promenade.

One evening, as Charlotte wes talking to him in the lit-
tle court of the Grand Manoir, a baend of terrorisis passed in
ihe street,‘singing lewd énd blood-thirsty songé; Charlotte

turned pale. Looking at Barbaroux, i1t occurred to her that
to save him from the hands of his enenies would be to deliver
her country.'

Tie next day at the hatel‘Saint—Ouen, she met several éf
the proscribed deputlies and listened to the;r discussions.
"Sans une néuvelle Jeanne d'Are," criedearbﬁroux, "e'en est
fait de la France!"(Gl)Charlotte Corday hesitated no longer.
Sle felt that Feaven was calling her to sanrifice her 1ife for
her country.

On the 9th of July, she went to the hotel de 1l'Intendance
and asked for B&rbéroux. She told him she was going to Paris

on an errand for her friend, Mlle de Forbin, and ssked for a
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letter to Du Perret. She’could‘soarcely restrain her tears
and would doubtless have'betrayed her project had not Pé-
tion entered at that mement. He joked her about coming to
see Barbaroux. |

« When ste returned to the Graﬁd Manoir, she took her
drawing materials, and;telling her aunt that she was going
to watch‘the haymakers iﬂ the country, departed.

Tre rest of tke book deals with Cherlotte Cordey's ar—
rival in Paris, and with her erime, triel, and execution.

Only those points wherein it differs from the factslas re-
lated in the introduction %o this thesis, will be treated.

The account Esquiros gives of Charlotte Corday's child-
hood and of her life in ﬁhe couvent corgesponds closely enough
with that giﬁen by more reliable authoritiecs, exeept ihat Le
does not mention Ler stay witlh the abbé de Corday at Vicgues,
nor the death of Ler mother. 4

His first error occuré Wwhen he makes the stetement: "Quand
elle eut atteiﬁt ses dix-sept ans,....Mademoiselle de Corday
quitta l'abbaye de 1?Gg§inité Tour habiterka Cée?eé% maison de
Mme de Pretteville." As we have already seen, hﬂharlotte
Cofday did not leave the convent until March 1791, and was,
therefore, tﬁenty—two_years of age. Moreover, she did not’go
directly to live with Madame de Bretheville, but;remained at
home with rer fetber for several months.

An interesting invention of Fsquiros is the story of Ma-
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rét's meeting with Charlotte Cofday in Normandy. The author
does not claim that this méeting wa s historical, *but he does
assert that "le voyage de Marat & Caen n'est pciht une fie-
tion; 1l demeura en effet chez la persoune dont nous don-—
nons icl les initiales, et qui garde deux lettres de lui."(64)'
It is trué'that Marat did leave Paris in September 1791.
"Marat fit un nuﬁéro d'adieu (21 Seypt. 1791), qui ne manqua
ni'd'éloquence ni de dignité, puls quitte Paris avec 1l'inten-—
tion de se rendre en Angleterre. Meis, choée curieuse, 11 ne

: } s o . .
put s'arracier de sa pairie d'adoption ni des perils et des

’

‘ . . A Y 4
amertumes de cette lutte qui le forga & vivre comme & l'etat
; ] - ‘ A ‘ . .
d'outlsw et de proscrit. Sur sa route, a Clermont-en-Beauvoisis,
» K] ‘ ' L3 - 3 3
il ecrivit un numero de son Jjournal, puis un sutre ﬂﬁreteull,

un sutre a Amiens, enfin r?vi?t dans la capitale pour continuer
son labeur de publiciste." %

Thile tﬁis does not necessarily exclude the possibility of
his having been at Cmen during the sene trip, 1t seems‘probable
that if Le hed been there, he woﬁld heve sent materiai for "1'Ami
du Peuple" from that place also, or fronm séﬁewhere in the vi-
cinity. ’

Tie love affair between Charlotte Corday énd %arbaroux,
tlough » widely circulated story, is also ficiitious. Accord-
ing to Esquirbs, the two were often togethér duriﬁg Barbaroux's

stay et Caen. Some writers Lave claimed that they were eungaged
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to be married. Eéquiros does'not:go go far. He says: “C'était
entre eux un aentiment doux ét élevéd qu‘épurait encore la

noble conformité d'opinion ou il prenzit sa BOULCE.v. ... Mademei-
selle dé Corday céngut pour Barbaroux'une de ces amitiés char-

\ L) ) ! L : by »
mantes ou le sexe glisse toujours, a son insu, un peu d'amour;

, (68)
» 4 . o o ~
mais c'etelt un de ces amours qui resteit dans 1l'ame."
The suthor gives tris love, Lhowever, rlatonic lLe intends

tohportray it, anfim§ortant'place in motivating the a&saésin—
ation of Marat. "Comme toutes les ames Tfortee qui embrassent
la sociéte dans leurs haines ou leurs amours, Charlotte Corday
s'imagina intérieurement Gue délivrer Barbaroux des mains des
Montegnards, c'était délivrer la patrie....Elleanut que le
ciel 1'afpelait par eétte bouche aimée & se dévouer rour son

- (687) '
paye."

Itjis qUite probable that Charlotte went to meetings at
which Barbaroux spoke, énd ﬁe know tlat she went to'thé hatel
de 1'Intendance to see him, bu%6§§‘is very doubtful whether
they ever met in & social way. ) It ig certain that there weaes
nothing more then césual‘friendship betweer them.

Vatel sees a proof of this in the letters that Parbaroux
end Puzot wrote to Selle in oriﬁiéism of his tragedy "Ohar-
1§tte Cordai." felle had pictured Hérault de Sfchelles es

falling in love witlL tle hercine. DRarbaroux suggests that he

rewrite the play, making Adam Lux Charlotte's lover.



Page 43,
"Barbaroux est ap )elé £ s'éxpliquer'précisément sur
1'amour %ue Charlotte de Corday saurait pu inbplrer, et il
indigue gqui? Adam‘Lux 'veritablement amcureux’ de'Char—
lotte. N'est-ce pas dire qufoh a pr@té‘é Chérlotte de
Corday des amoureux supposéa?....\Salle n‘aurait—il pE B
trouve moyen de mettre Barberoux en scene, si, confident de
sa vie intime, ilyavait su gu'il avait eXisté entre Mdlle
de Corday et son ami un sentiment d'amour?..... Puzot dit:
'Surtout, pes d'emour dans une Eiéoefde Ce genre....vannis-
sez-le de la votre; il y est petit, 11 en dépare 1esvbeautés;

.

1'incos venance saute aux'yeux'. fi cet amour elt existé de (
. Q)

la pert de Rarbaroux, Buzot n'aurait pas parlé d'in00ﬁvenance.%“)

Moreover, at Caer, Parbaroux "ne sacrifis jamais les plai-
sirs & la politigue. Il avait pour meftresse en titre, auw su
et alt vu de toute la ville, une maP&UIQG de fort boune nobies )
se devsnue girondine per l'amour et qui se faisait appeler Zel .

Esquiros mentions only oue visit to Perbaroux at the In-
tendance, and places it ou the morning of the 9th, just bLefore
Charlotte's dseparture for Parie. He pioturéé her zs bedng about
to give way to tears 'on saying farewell to Barbarouﬁ, This lat-
ter fiction is based, of cburse, on the supposition that Char-
lotte Corday ioved Barbaroux, and is tdpe discerded along with
that theory. Charloite, in her second examirnation, states that

(71)
she went three times to the Intendance; The most relisble his—

torians agree that the last of these interviews with Barbaroux
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took place on tle’afternoon of tﬁe 7th, and thet Parbareux

d@1d not have the letter for Duperrét ready at that time, but
sent it tc Ler the next morning.

According to Esquiros, Madawe de Bretheville, entering
Chaflotte 8 room one evening, "trouv sur la table une vieille
Bible ouverte, et lut ces mots soulignés &l ergyor: ;Judith
sortit de la ville, @arée d 'une beauté merveilléuse dont le

elwncup 1lui QY$1§ Tait cadeau, pour se rendre & la tente |
d'HolopLerﬁe. - This anecdote would be difficult either 1o
substantiate or to deny. It has tle air of being one of those
stories which are not‘%emembered"until after an event which
would seem to lend them significence, and which may or may rot
Lave a'basis in fact. Several writers have made use of it
since; but Tequiros seeme to have been the first. "2 Caen, on
nous & affirme que ¢ 'était une tr dﬁtlon fort ancienne, an-—
térieure aux pecherches de M. Esquiros....Ce Qui est certain,
elest qu?T%% priofité de la publication appartient a M. Es-
guiros." ;

- Esquiros mekes anotler error when he sgys that Charlotte,
on lesving the Grand Mano’r for the last time, told her aunt
she was golng to the country to waachrthe haymakers et work.
The record of her seéond hebring quotes her as saying that

"Elle g¢vait fait croire & s parente (u 'elle allait passer guel-

74)
ques jours chez gson pere & Argentan."
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The incident of Charlotte's giving her sketches an&
drawing materiales to one of her yoﬁng friends, as she left
for Paris, was told to M. Esquiros by the child himself, groun
to‘bé an old maﬁ; The only detail in which Tsquiros differs
from others writers is that be glvﬁs the Doy 8 name as Robert,
while they (w*th the exception of Lomartine) call him Louis.
".f..le Jeune Lunel auquel ce present fut fait par Charlotte
Cordey, s‘appelaif Louié(e})non TE B Robert. Ce nom est 1'in-
vention de M., Esquiros.ﬁiTu

On Crarlotte's arrival at The hotel de 1la Providence, ac—
cording to Fsquiros, the following conversation took rlace be-
tween her end Ler hostess, Loulse, Grollier:

"D'oU Venez—vous ainsi, citoyenne?

——De'Caen, répondit—elie.

r——Aioré5,remarqua l'hatésseg vouse devez saveird es nou—
velles. Est=il vrai gu'une force armée partied s votre ville
marche d&ns‘cermoment sur Paris?

—-Je me suis trouvée sur la place de Caen le jour ou l'on
a battu la génér&le pour venir & Paris, reprit 1l'ihconnue dveo
un demi—sd&ire: il n'y avait pas trente persohnes. ’

—Mais quel motif, citoyerne, peut ﬁous amener toute seule,
et encore Jjeune, dans notre ville, au milieu des thses terribles
qui s'y passent?

--Je n'y suis que pour quelques jours. Je woudrais ob-

» >
tenir des pariers nécessaires & l'une de mes emiss d'enfance.
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Apres quoi, je m'en petournerai.
s ‘ ) hy
——Vous connaissez done du monde & Paris?

-—Jd'ai une lettre de recommandeation pour le citoyen Du

Perret.

N

--Le député & le Tonvention? ,
, W(7a).
——Oui; Je compte m'y faire conduire demain.
The testimony of Louise Grollier shows that at
saﬁe time or other during Charlottie's stay at the hotel de
la Providence, her hosteus'ésked Ler sbout tle state of af-
fairs at Cuen, and received the enswer recorded above, but
there is no indication that Cherlotte told Ler anythipg aboutk
her érrand for Mlle de Forbin or thet she spoke of Duperret.
It is very unlikely that she did, for she was very careful,
in her first hearing, immediately after the sssassiration,
not to mention the deputy. It we.s only after his address
had been found in her room and he had been arrestea &8s her
accom;lice,\that she told of ber relations with him.

Arnotier discrepancy occurs in regard to the date of Char-
lotte's first visit to Duperret. quuiros states that she
went to bed at Five o'clock on the dey of her arrival and
did rot go to seeFDuperret until tke rext morrning. This er-—
ror doubtless had 1ts source in Clarlotte's testimony before
Guellard &t Marat's house, "qu'arrivée jeudy vers le midy, elle
s8lest oouchée; n'est sortie de son arpartement que le vendre-

d& mutin, pour se promeuner vers la Place des Victoires et daus
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(77) - |
le Palais Royal."" This statement was made, obviously, to
avoid‘&mplicating Duperret. In her later hearings she ad—
mitted "qu'elle a été a 1l'iustant de son arrivée chez le
citoyen Duperret, député de la Convention."(?B)Duperret, in .
his defence before the uonventlon corroborates tnls stateméZt?

Thus quuiros Pleces Chsrlotte Cordey's two visits to
Duperret's house on Friday the 12th instead of on Thuruday the
11lth. Ee also says that during her first interview with him
she urged him to join his friends at Caen. The conversation )
Esquiros quotes did occur, but according to Duperret's testi-
monyZ it wasvae they pabfed after his second visit to her ho-
tel, ?ggich visit EsQuirqs does nqt record. He mefely states
that Charlotte Corday was un:ble to obtain the papers for Mlle
de Forbin, leaving the reader to suppose that’she succeeded in
obtaining an interview Qith the Minister of the Interior, ané
adds that after that she took leave of Duperret.

AccOrding to the novel, Charlotte Corday purchased the
knife on the evening of the thh, as bhe was returning to the .
hotel from Duperret's house, instead of on the morning of the
13th, as the records of the trial indicate. The author goes
on to tell that, coming out of the cutler's shop, she sat down
on one of the benches in the garden of the Palais-Royal. &
child playing near by was attracted to her. She took him on

her lap, end began to dream, in splite of herseif, of the Jjoys
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she was giving up. "Cependent ies petits doigts fureteurs
et éurieux de l'énfant, qui fouillaient depuié un instant
sous:le fichu rouge de Charlotte, en tirent, poﬁr jouer, 1le
sinistre couteau. A cette vue, elle palit, se leve, jette
autour d'elle un regard inguiet, dépose 1l'enfant a terre,
et s'éloigne, rentrant %e noutesu sous le fichu et le fatal
secret dans son sein."(w%ﬁis story is arparently an invention
of Esquircs. Yo trace of it is found prior to nis novel. |
Esquiros mentions only one attempt to gaﬁn entrance to
Maraet's uparfment, instezd of the two or three indicated in
the trial.(8§; replaces'éll‘the women of Marat's household;
Simonne Evrard, her sisterCatherine, and Je%nn?tte Maréchal,,
by "uﬁe vieille servante nommée Catherine." %
Fd&her on he says: "La citoyenne Evrard, accourue la
premiére au cri du mourant)raconte alors avolir tbouvé l'as—
sassin debout contre in rideau dans l'ahtichambre et 1'avoir
prise a la téte."(gég his account of the trial, we find: "Une
femme d'environ trente ans, la cltoyenne Evrard, vint dépqser
longuement devant le tribunal; elle finit eﬁ'ces termes: 'Un
eri parti du cabinet ou eétait Marat m'a fait acequrirj J'al
appelé les voising, é€tles volsins étant venus, j‘ai‘couru‘vers
Harat: i1 m'a regardé sans rien)&te; j'ai a1dé & 1le sortir
du bain; alore 11 a expiyé'"(BSThese are th@’only references
to Simonne Evrard; and since nothing is said of her relation

to Marat, the reader is left to wonder who she was and how
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she happened to arrive on the scene before the "Viéhle ser—
vante." |

Always seeking to gh ow Marat's benevolence, Esquiros
affirms that when rharlotte Corday entered, Marat'"signait>
son nom au bas d'une pétition au ministre en faveur‘d'une

3

pauvre vewve, mére de quaire(enfants, gui avait réclamé le
secours de 1l'ami du peuple.” 8'S)v'l?h:'us s tatement he labels as
"historjqueﬁ, but ﬁnfortunatehr, fails to give his authority.
There 1s quite a variety of opinion as to what Marat was writ-
ing, depending on the light each indi vidual author.wishésvto
throw upon his character; The ones who picture him as a ty-
rant and a monster (Lamarfine, Ponsard,VColet) say that he was
making froscription 1ists§ D'Alméras is probably right when
hé says:"Sur le parguet, un peu partout, eteient jetéys des
numéros du Jjournal de Marat, quEil)eXamiﬁait, annotait; et dont
11 préparait une réimpressioh." o |

Esquiros, apparently feeling that the story of the assassin-
ation aé told by Charlotte gorday was too prosaic, suggests,
without quite acoepting‘as,a‘faot, another‘iégend. "Nous avons
entre les meine une lettre inédite de Mlle Julie‘Candeille qui.
préetend tenir de la gouv?rndnte meme de Marat quelques détailsk
curieux; celle-ci, par pfﬁdence, et selon la lettee, par Jalou—
sie, venait de temps en temps écouter & la porte. Marat aurait,

dans un moment d'ebdndon et de familiarité, touché le bras de

Charlotte Corday. A ce geste imprudent, que cette jeune fille
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prit pour une insulte, le visag; de Pharlotte se couvrlt d'une
vive rougeur, et sa me.in, qui fouillait depuls quelques in-
stants sous son fichu, en tira un coutezu don: elle enfonga

lz lame trés—avent dans le corps de Marat}"(s :

It is extremely improbable that there is ahy truth in -
thiis sfory.‘ No'mention is made of it in the trial éither by
Charlotte Corda&,or by any of the other witnesses. All that
we know of what paéaed 5etween Marat and his ascassin is what
slie herself tells us. If any one of the women of Marat's
ousehold had witnessed the assassination from'theAdoor, would
she not have]told ai least part 6f_wbat sheksaw? )

According to Eequiros, "Un chirunrgien quil logeait un étage
au-dessus dans %a méme meison, Jean'Pelletaﬁ, était descendu
en toufe hate." 832 is confusing two persons. The man who 1li-
ved on the floor above Marat, was & surgeon-dentist named Dela—
fondée. The latter sert immediately to the "Ecoles de Chirur—
gie" and Pegletan the head surgeon of the Hotel-Dieu, answered
this call.( *) \

The following inecldent, supposed to Lave occurred dufing
Cherlotte Cordey's first examination, Tesquiros takes from Har-—
mand de la Meuse: "Chabot, qui promenaitdépuls quel ques in-
stants sur elle un regard cynigue, avangsa ia mein vers la gorge
dé cette femme: croyant voir dans ce geste un horpible out—

rege, Charlotte Corday se retire vivement, un nuage de pudeur

» . . N i
offensee monte & ses Jjoues vierges, et un eclair terrible B'al-
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lume dans ses yeux; mals dans le‘premier1houvement d'alarme
elle avait jeté avec taut de fureur ses ép&ules én arriere,
que les cordons, les épingles‘et les boutons qui retenaient
son corsage rompirent brusquement;‘elle se tfouva tout &
fait‘découverte devent les regards curieux des assistants....
Flle abaissa sur ses deux genouxlses seins effaroudnés......'

"Charlotte Corday‘avait les mains attachees; elle deman-—
da, en les présentant a ses bourreaqx, qu?on 1és lui déliét,
pour qu'elle pit se rghabiller;.... |
| "Quand oﬁ 1ui°éut dégag§ les'mains, elle se tourna en
face du mur et répara a la hite le dsordre pénible de sa
tollettese .o |

"Pendant tout ce débat, le billet qui, cachédans le sein
de Charlotte Corday, avait attiré le regard et le méin de Cha-
‘bot, était tombé & terre. Celui-1& le ramessa. C!étazit un
bulletin du Calvados, au Be trouvait écrit a la plume le nom
de Barbaroux."(gl) |

{armand de la Meuse was present at tpis examination, it
'is true, but since no other eye—vwitness mentions this incident,
1t seems possible that he has at least exaggerdated the facts.
As fof the "Bulletin du Calvados", no mention of it is

found in any of the recobés. If 1t kad been found on the pri-
soner, it would éurely ha ve been consldered importént enough to

be 1listed with the rest of the articles discovered when Char-



Puge 52.
lotte’Corday was sealrched.

Aocording to Esquiros, the prisoner was taken from Ma-
rat's lLiouse to thé Counciergerie, transferred, on thLe morn-
ing of the 16Lh,‘to the Abbaye, and returned to the Con-
ciergerieyon thé 17th, after the trial. As wé have already
seen; she ﬁaS'iﬁprisoned first in the Abbage,(ggéd remo ved
to the Concieréerie the afternoon of the 16th.(95)‘

Esquiros also gays thet she wroté her‘letter to Bar-
baroux on'theievening of the 1l&th. The fact is that this
letter was bégun ?n>the 15th, "le second jour de la prépa¥—

tation & la paix." 9%%9 first pabt of it was read at the
hearing before Montané on the morning of the 16th. This hear-
» ring, Fsquiros does 1ot ﬁention at all. The letter to Par-
baroux was finished at the Conciergerie the afternoccen of the
.16th.

Although the committee of General Security at first re-
fused(to authorize the pﬁblieation of charlotte Corday's let-
ters, QAz)number of more or less inaccurate versions appeared
in newspapers. Finally, "le rédacteur du Pulletin nous ap-
Prend qu'il.circulait des contrefagons nombreuses des lettres
de Charlotte Corday; 1l les donne toutes dans le supplément

& son numéro LXXIII, en avertissant gue Fouquier-Tinville lui

a conmuniqu% 1§S originaux, et qu'il en reproduit jusqu'é l'or-
thographe."

The text of the letter to Barbaroux as copied by Buchez
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and Roux from the_"Bu11etin du Tribunsl Révolutionnairea"
and the one(gh%t TLouis Dubeis takes from the "Archives
Vationales" ‘Zre the seme, except that Dubois has corrected
the spelling. |

The version . that Esquiros givés'is the one published
in the Moniteur of July 3lst, 1795.(9§% varies somewhat from
the bpiginal." There are several changes in the wording and
a number of omissions. ‘

The account Qf the trial itself, thoﬁgh considerably
abridged, is'quite gceuraté as far as it‘goés. The details
of the defense and of the‘condemnation are apparentiy teken
from the notes of Chaveau-Lagarde.

The admiration of Adam Lux for Charlotte>00rday'seems
to appeal especially to Fsquiros's imagination. He adds to
and alters the historical facts in order to lend more pa-—
thos and moré romance to the already strang? story.

Instead of a young mdn of twenty-eight ?gilready a doctor
of philosophy and a deputy teo the Convention from the eity of
Meyence, Esquiros mekes Adem Lux & boy not‘yet twenty years of
&ge.(loO)

tecording to the novel, "Lorsque Ohérlotte Ccrday avait
été jetée dans kas‘prisons, un homme éteit accouru; il avait
demendé avec larmes et les mains jointes,‘é prendre la place

de cette femme et & subir pour elle le chatiment gu'on lui

Dréparait. I1 ne put rien obtenir des gedliers impitoyables,
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et se retire consterne. Cet romme etait Adam Lux' :

This statement is in part corroborated by D?Alméras:
"Pendant le proces un‘jeuné homre demanda & ée constituer
prisonnier a la place de Charlotte Corday et & subir 15
peine dont on la croyait digne. On ne it droit qu'a la
moiég de sa demande. Il fut guillotini." (lOQéould this
young man haVe Ween Adam Lux? It scarcely éeems'pos&ible
that, when the authorities were seéking 50 diligently for
Charlotté Qorday's‘accomplices, a man making such a reguest
would havé beeh allowed to escape. If there 1s any truth
at all in the story, the young man must have Been placed under
" arrest at once and could not, therefore, have been Adam Lux.

| Besides, it is not at all certain thet Adam Lux had seen
Charlotte before the afternoon of lLer execution. His own
_words would seem to indicate that he had not. "Le Mercredi
17 juillet,‘jour de son execution, vers le soir, je fus sur-
pris de ce Juvement precipitp dont Je m'ignorals cependant av-
cun détail: J'en savais a Peu pres aBgez pour conclure que cet-
te personne devait montrer un courage extraordinaire. C'était
la scule idee de cefcourage qui m'oceupeit dans la rue Saint-
Honoré, en la voyanlt approcher sur la charrette; mais guel fut
mon étonnement monsque,voutre une imtrépidité gue j'attendais,
je vis cette douceur inaltérable aﬁ milieu des hurlements bar-

bax‘es.....lﬁn(103)

Not content with the above addition to the story of this
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love, Fsquiros tells that cherlotte, cn her return to the
prison after her condémnation, found & letter from Adam
Lux. He fakes passages from the latterts discourse of
July 19th, changes a word here and‘there, adds a sentence'
or two, and gives it as the text of thie purely imaginary
letter. As she read if, Fsquiros wéﬁld have us believe,
Charlotte wepf. "Cet amour la ramens sur la douce et verte
nature, sur le ciel bleu....qu'elle ne reverrsit plus. TFlle
pensa que le bonheur lui aurailt été si facile & deux, au bord
dés ruisseaux de la‘Normandie, sous un tQit’de chaume! TFlle
fit un triste retour sur sa solitude, sur sa priscn, sur sa
mort proohaine.... v

"Elle en vint presque & douter d 'elle-méme; son action,
qui lﬁi avalt paru jusque~l£ héroiqué et utile au monde, lul
fit presgue l'effet d'en coup de téte téméraire ei infruetueux..f

"Elle s'interroges sur ce gul plaft le mieux a Dieu, du
bfas qui immole les tyrans ou du cmuf qui aime; et une voix
lui répondit: Cherlotte, Charlotte, vous vous etes beaucoup
troublée et agitée; mais vVOous ﬁ‘avez point éhoisi la meilleure

(104) |

part."

Ve find nolauthority‘for believing that Chaflotte»Corday
ever regretted in the le st Ler action or that she doubted for

a moment its efficecy in bringing peace and happiness to France.

She was alone orly for & very few minutes, if at all, between
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the time of her condemnation and that of her~exeéution.: Hauer,

whose visit Esquiros does not record, arrived shortly after

she reachea he r cell, and remeined until Sanson cane for Ler.
(105) (108) .

Both Haver and Senson speak of her tranquility and com-—

posure.

- Fsquiros pictures her as being engaged in answebing Adam
Lﬁx's letter when the executioner entered. UHe asserts that
she asked permission to finish it end was refused. The re-
cords show that the letter she was writing was addressed to
Doulcet de Pontécoulant,.and that she did finish it.

On the afterncon of theexecution, says Esquiros, Adam Lux,
awaiting in the rue Seint-Honors the passing of the tumbril,
"portait a sa boutonniére le ruban vert que Charlotte Corday
evalt laissé tomber de soun bonnet en se débattant avecbles
femmes sur les maroheé de 1l'escalier de Marat......

"Lorsque Charlotte Corday passa, leurs regards se rencon—
trérent; elle remérqua le visage réveur et poétiqueaé ce Leau
Jeune homme blond gui se détachait mélancoliquement sur le fond
sombre et tumultueux de cette tourbe grossiére; elle remargua
le ruban vert qu'il portait & son habit; et tdﬁ(les deux alors
mirent plus de choses dans ce regard rapide qu'on ne s'en con—
fierait pendant mille ans a se parler téte—a-teéte au fond des

(107)
bois."

Adem Lux, the only person gualified to corroborate these

statements, does not mention, in his eulogy cof Charlctte Cor-
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day, either the green ribbon QP‘thiS exchange of glances.
There is nothing to indicate that CLharlotte Corday ever saw
or knew anjtbing about her admirer.

Aecording to the novel, Charlotte requested that her hair
should not be cut. "On lesii releva seu%ement par derriére
pour ue point‘amortirklevfil du couteau." 1g§; memoirs of
Sansdn show thsat her halr was cut, and th%toshe gave part of
it to Haver and the rest fo Mademe Ridhard% ?

When the Executioner's a$sistant tore anay Charlotte's
fichu, says Eéquiros, she éried: "Au nom de votre mére, mon—

(110)
sieur, couvrez-moi." Defrance refutes this statement. "C'est

\

a Mme Elizabeth, et ?oa %wﬁ a 0herlotte Corday, gu 'il faut rap-
111
porter ces paroles. "

Esquiros mekes another error, common to several historians,
in saying thet Tegros, who slapped Charlo{tevﬂorday's dead face,
was one of Sanson's assistants. In‘facﬁ, such wae the report
in the papers at the time of the event, but in number 210 of the
"Révolutions de Paris", appeared ﬁhe follow;ng COrrection: "Le
citoyen fanson, exéouteur des Jugements criminélsdé“?aris, ré-
clame contre l'article No. 209 qui 1'inculpe d'avoir, luil ou ses
valets, souffletd la téte dé Charlotte Corday aprés l'exécution;
11 nous assure que c'est au contreire un cherpentier qui a ?{f £y
bpuni de cet enthoublamne *noonoevab]e et gquli a reconnu sa faut;.

In his memoirs, fanson speceks of Legros as "un charpentier, gui

» . N L s § . N R
Pendant la Jjournee avait travaille & des reparations & la guil-
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lotine."

Our conclusion, with regard to Esquiros's presentation
of Charlotte Corday, must be that it is highly romanced and
very inaccurate. In spitie of his pains in collecting mater—
1al, he does not Lesitate to alter or to inveat incidents if

-

le thinks that, by so doing, he can add interest to the storj.

.
.0 4 80 8¢ 000
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Chapter II.

Charlotte Corday in Lamartine's "Histoif’d des Cirondins".

The "Higtoire des Girondins",kin eight volumes, was
published by Lumartine in 1847, Abqut elzty pages of the
sixth'volume»are‘devoted to Charlotte Corday. The eﬁtire
work wes written with an eye to the effect it would produce
upon. the people, rather than to its histobic&laccuraéy, for,
it appears, the suthor had a political purpose in mind.

Aecording to Doumic, "Lemartine, en 1845,.est un mécon—
tent; 1l a puuse brusquement & l'orrosition; et dens 1'oppo—
sition il ne treouve pas la place qu'il ambitionne, la premiére.
Désespérant d'obtenir par la parcle l'influence Qu'il souhaite,
il recourt & un autre moyan, qul est de remuer l'opinion en
réveillant chez elle Ta fol aux ;rlncipes de la Revelution.
fon objet est done un objet d'application immédiate; clest le
contreire méme du désintirassament qu'lexize la viriteble méthode
historique. Il veut, sous d'autres noms %iifﬁns un sutre cedre,
présenter auw public sa propre politique.” ) |

"His metlods were sbsolutely unscientific," says Vkhitehouse
another of Lumartine's viogrephers, "bui he wa: writing with an
immediate purrose in view, not a york of erudition, but of pol-
itical import. fDon't read it,' he remarked to M. Molé, when the

book wes published. 'It is written for the people. The peorle
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are about to rlay the principdi part: they must be yrepdred,
to them must bé'given a disteste for executions in order thaet
the coming revolution may be exempt from the excesses of the
first. 1t is my duty to*@repare the people, to pr?par? myself
/ : :

for I will be the leader of & new social order.' " H

 F fteén yéérs latér, Lamartine himeelf wrote & "criticue
de 1'Histoire des Girondins"; in which he pointed out numer-
ous errors in the original work. However, concerning the chap-
ters on Charlotte'ﬁorday, he says: "Toutes les circonstences
les plus minutieuses de la vie de ~harlotte Corday, cette Judith
cheste de la patrie, sont de la plusé conscientieuse e?actﬁtude.
de n'ai négligé ni soins‘ni peines pour les obtenir." llGA

We shall try to determine to whaet extent this cleim is va—
'lid. He indicetes two sources of meterial. "Je dois presque
tout & un homme de cEur etdd telent, son veisin, M. de la Si-
cotiére, gui a feit, d!aprés nature et_d*aprés 1eé traditions
encore vivantes, le portrait de son immortelle compatriote. Je
dois beaucoup aussl au sprituel docteur Georgeé Duvel, témoin

A ' (117)
des événements et peintre des figures.

Tamertine's eccount of Charlotte Cordey's childbood, be-
fore she entebed the convent, corresponds clos~ly encugh with
that of other historians, except trat he dces not mention the
years she spent wit? the abbé de Corday. However; he says of
her fatler: "Il aspirait de 1'dme une révolution'prochaine (gic)

«+..I1 gvait écrit quelquee ouvrages de circonstence contre
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le despotisme et le droit‘d'afnéSﬁe.. Ces éerits Staient
pleins de l'esprit quiallait éclore. Il avait en lui 1'hor-
reur de la superstition,'I'ardeur d'une pliilesophie naiséante,
le pressentiment d'unewrévolutionVnéCGSSaire."(l%Slther on
we find: "1es opinioné républioaineg du pére dé Clarlotte
C?rday s'éfaieﬁt infiltrées plﬁs ou moius dans ses proches.q
La famille de Cbrday penchalt pour les idées nouVelles."(llb)
It is true that Frangois de Cbrd&y had written several articles
on the injustites that existed under the'gld fégime, but, as
we have already seen, he remained a loyal subjegg of the king,
- and could by no means be called a republican.(léh)

One of the many love affaires attributed by verious writers
to Chezrlotte Corday was with Henri(E;Belsunee. 1Acbording to
the legend, he waé the nephéw of Mme de Belmmnce, abbess of the
Seinte-Trinite. The etory goés that Cherlotte met him.dufing'
I'er econvent days and wee engaged to him at the time he was killed
’in the streets of Caen. It was suvpposed that this murder was
the result of the exhortations of Marat inyfl'amivdu Peuple”,
and thet, in order <o avenge her lover, Charlotte resclved to
ascassinate Marat. A

The 1egénd seeme to Lhave had its origin in a letter written
by Touguier-Tinville to the committee of Generalfecurity:

"Je vous observe que je viené d'8tre informé que cet &S-—

» LY 5
Sassin femelle oteit 1'amie de Belzunce, colonel tué & Caen dans

une insurrection, et gue depuls cette époque-elle a congu une
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haine implacable contre Marat, et gue cette haine paraft
s'étre raniméevchez elle au moment ot Marat a dénbncé |
Piron, qﬁi étalt parent de Felsumce, et que Parbarbux ﬁar&ft
avoir profité des diervos! tions criminelles ov était cette
fille eontre Marat poub 1'amener a eiécuter cet horrible
. _ (121)

ascassinat."

;Lamartineqrejects the idea ©of a love affair between Char-
1ottekﬁorday and Henrl de Belsunce, but he does egsert that the
latter was the nephew of Madame de Belsunce and that Cherlotte
knew him at the ccnvent. |

Vatel says: "Mabatrn'a jamais demandé la téte'de Belsunce,
par une raison fort simple, c'est que son Jjournal n'a paru gu'un
mois ap:és le massacre de cet officier. Le premier numéro est -
du 12 septembre, 1789; M. de Belsunce périt dés le 12 aolut de
la néme année. . c

"M. Eenri de Belsunce n'était pas le neveu de Madame 1'ab—
besce g; Belsunce. Il tait son barent éloigné...,ll etait des
vicomtes de Belsunce (de Macaie), tandis qu'elle descendait des
Pelsunce de Cestelmoron. Twlle était décédée le 3 février 1787,
et 11 ne vint en garnison & Caen qu'en mvril 1789. C'est une
question de savoir si Henridd Beleunce a §onnu noﬂseu%fgggt Char-
lotte de Corday, mals l'ablesse de la Sainte—TriniEé? J

Temartine's desofiption of Madare de Bretheville differs
eemevl et frem thet gilven us by Medame de Marmonne.(lzg) Instead
of the miserly, suspicioué 0old lady, with an asnnual iﬂcomé of

‘ C(154)
40,000 francs, who recelved her young cousin reluctantly at



first, Lamartine pictures her as "une pauﬁre veuve.sans en-
’fants, dgée et infirme", and adds: "Auprés d;elle habitait
depuis quelgues aunées une jeune parerte gu'elle avait re-
cueillie et 5levée rour étayér sa vieillesse et pour peupler
sou isolement."(lggirther on, he says: "Cette tante €teit sans
fortune, comme toute sa femille. 7¥lle vivait Ganseette ob-
sou;ité et dané ce 5iience gui laissent a peine conuaitre def
plus proches voisins le nom et l'existernce d'une pauvre veéigéz

According to Lamartine, Charlotte Cofday lived with Madame
de Eretheville for more.than ﬁve yéars.’ He says: "Au mome?tﬁ
de la suppression des monasteres, Charlotte avait dix-neuf ;;22,
and he inddate§ that she went directly to 1live with this cousin,
whom she called "aUnt"; The suppression of the monasteries was
decreed Tebruary 174h, 1790, and Chairlottebv, born in July 1768,
wes at that time twenty-oné vears old. Moreover, she did not
ledve the convent till March 1791, and did not go to Madame de
Bretheville‘s t111 several months later. Therefore, she lived
at the Grerd Manolr only two years. This conclusion is corro—
borated by Charlotter's own statement in her prelimirery Learing
before Montané "qu'il n'y a gue deux ans gu'elle est chez elle"

(128)

(Mme de BretheXville.)

Spesking of Charlotte Corday's favorite books, Lamartine
says: "Leé livres passionnés ou légers de_l'époque, tels que
1'Hélolse ou Taubles, éteient eussi feuilletés par elle. Mais,

. ~ ~ . ~
bien que son imagination ¥y gllunat ses reves, son ame n'y per-
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dit jamais sa pudeur, ni son adolescence sa chasteté."

Aecording to VAtel, Tamartine's sauthority in this case was
an article publishedvby‘Paul Delasalle in the "Mosaique de
1'Ouest." This article reads @s fcllows: "Un beau jour, au
comiencenent de la Terreur, des agents révolutionnaires, sous
prétexté de faire une visite domiciliaire, s'intiroduisent dauns
la maisonde la tante de Charlotte Corday aveo laguelle elle
demeurait a Caen. Ils pénétreut dane une chambre ou Charlotte
faisait{la lecture & hLaute voix & plusi eurs danes....A leur vue,
elle s'empresse de cacher le livre dans son sein....Un des com—
missaires s'en apergeit et la force d'exhiber ce livre, sedi-
tieux selon toute apparence.——C'était 'Faublas.!"

Vatel adds: "Nous reconnaissons gue le.récit de "la Moe&—

satque de 1'0usst" est calqué, sauf quelques embelliséhents de
style, sur la lettre d'une persorne gui prétendait tenir l}ahé'
necdote de Mme L...., sa taﬂte.

"Fn 1861, Mme T.... existait encore et demeurait & Cher-
bourg.... Noue nous rendfmes dans cette ville;et'en présence de
témoins, rous lul donnimes conneissance du passage de "la Mosali-
que", en lui demandsnt el elle en reconnaissait 1'exactitude.

"Voici sa réponse, &orite sous ses yeux et appfouvée par
elle: ,

“"Tout ce gu'on & rapporté sur lea vislte domiciliaire, la
lecture en conmun ét la saisie du livree, est faux.

"‘Ce‘sont des faits iMeginaires dont je n'aveis Jjamais en—

tendu perler. Je ne sals pas comment on peut falre de pareilles
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inventions et me les attrivuer'.....

"Nous avons recueilli nous-méme a Caen des bruits de
cette naturé. Ainsi Mlle de L....tenait de sa mere que
r‘lm'lo“ml:e 113&1t les "Liaisons dangereuses%....Ces calom—
nies aveient ete ordonnees-systematiquement contre Clar—
lotte de Corday §ar arrdté de la commune de Paris.... Un
artwcle, placarde dans Paris, envoye dans la province, mul-

tiplié & 1'infini par la presse, est blgnc de Tabre d'Eglantine.

Voice ce qu'il contient: |

"' Ta tete de Oh arlotte Corday etait T Lurcie'de livres de
tovte espéoe; elle & déclfré; ou plutat elle avouelt avec une
affectation qul tenait de la rad»oulite,(ig%%r tout lu, depuis
Tacite jusqn‘au "Portier des Chartreux".®o trace is to be found
of any such confessioy on tlie pert of Charlotte Corday.

Lamaertine's own personality is :efleeted in his ﬁescriptioﬁf
of Cherlotte Corcay's attitude,toward love and marrisge. "Dé-
vorée du besoin d'wimer, inspirant et ressentafy quelguefois les
premiérs symptomes de 1l'amour, sa réserve{ 58 dépendance et sa
misere la retinrent tou@ours saux derniers aveux de sges senti?
ments. Tlle déchirait son ceur powr emporter viclemment le pre—
mier lieu qui s'y attachalt. Son amour, refovlé‘ainsi par la
volonté et per le sort, changes non de nature, meie d'idéal. Il
se trensforma en vague et sublime dévousrent 3 un’réve de bonheur

(131)

publio."

Thie thisvpoint is perbeps too intengible and too subjective
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to ensble us to arrive at any very definite conclusion, La-
martine's characterization does not sgree with that of Char-
lotte's friends. Mademedd Marmonne says: "Aucun homme ne
fit la moindre impression sur elle; ees pensfes 8taient ail-
leurs. Je puls du reste affirmer gue rien n'était rlus é—

] » » * ) .
loigne d'elle que 1l'idee du marizge. J'aiteste que nul ne put
jamals se vanter de lui avoir plu, d'aveir pris une Tlace

| . (132) , '

quelcongue dans son ceur."

In this same connection, Lanmartine has borrowed another

| (133) |

legend from Paul Delasalle. Describing Charlotte's emotion
as she watched the volunteers leaving Caen on July 7th, he
says: "Cet enthousiasme était, dit-on, attendri en elle par
le sentiment mystérieux, mois pur, que lui portait un de ces
Jeunes volontaires.... Charlotte Corday n'aveit pu rester in-
sensible a ce culte oaehé, mais elle immoleit cet attachement de
pure reconnaissernce a un culte plus sublime.

"Ce Jjeune homme se nommait Franguelin. Il adorait en ei-
lence la belle republicaine. Il entretenait avec elle une cor-

s »
regpoendence pleine de reserve et de respect. FElle y repondait
. » [] . . . ]
evec la triste et tendre reserve d'une Jjeune fille qui n'a que
. . » .

des infortunes & apporter en dott.Flle awit donne son portrait
au jeune volontaire et lui permettait de l'aimer, du moins dens

. » L 'l - ., . ~
son image. M. de Franguelin, emjorte per l'elan general, et sur

d'obtenir un regard et une apprebaiion en s'armant pour la li-
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berté, s'était enrdlé dans le bat&illcn de Caen.... Le jeune
Franquelin, apreé l'acte et le supplice de Cherlotie Coriay,
se retire dens un village de Normahdie, frappé lui-méme 2 mort
par le contre—coup de la hacﬁé qui avait tranché la téte de
celle qu'il adorait. L&, seul avec‘sa mere, il languit quel-
ques mois, etrﬁourut en demendant que le.pobtbait et les-lettres‘
de Charlotte fussent ense elisaﬁe? lui. Cette image et ce
gecret reposentydans ce cercuell.” 1es)

The origihal story-goés fhat some time after Charlotter's
execution, a young man named TFranguelin came to Vibraye where
he soon died, réquesting thet a portraiﬁ and some letters, which
he always carried next to his heart, be buried with him. The
secret was not divulgéd until some forty yeaps‘later, when an
old woman, formerly Franquelinis housékeeper, saw in the col- -
lection of M. de Saint-Remy, anfart~10vér of le Mans, a copy of
the Charlotte Corday of Scheffer. Without hesitatioﬁ she re-
cognized it as the portrait of the young woman F:anquelin had
loved. - |

M. Léon de la SicotiSre commente &s followsk; "Outre que ce
nom de Franquelin n'a laissé aucun souvenir ni dans la ville de
Caen, ni dens la famille de rharlotte Corday, ni méme & Vibraye,k
faut—1il relever touﬂpe qu'offre d'invraisemblable une pareille
renonnaiséance aprés un sl longtemps écould? Teut-il remarguer
que le portraitflde Churlotteqde fcheffer a placé dans son tableau

est entieérement de fantaisie?....fi 1l'amante de Franquelin res-
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sembleit & le Charlotte de xehef;er, nous pcuvonvafflrger
que ce n etait pas 1la verita079 Charlotte de Porday "(1 °)

The departure of Franquelin for Paris as a volunteer is
apparently Lerartine's own addition to the Story.

According to Lamartine, ”har10ute went only twice to the
notel de 1'Intendance. We leve already seen ?hats according to
her oWn testimony, she was there three times. 1ee

On the 8th of July, says iamartine, Gharlotte went to Apr-
gentan to bvid farewell to Her father and sister, telling them
that slie was going to England. Charlotte Corday's last visit
to Argenten was in fpril, 1793. Questioned during ner trial,
gbout her passport, which, Lamartine ?bsegts "elle aveit pris
yuelgues Jjours avant, pour Argentan," 13Zhe declared "qu elle
l'await pris dans le mois d'Avril dernier, d'abord pour aller
?oir ses parens a Argentan; qu'ensuite se tﬁouvant a la mu-
nicipelité avec une de ses amies gui en prenait un, qué la mu-
nicipalité se trouvant en trein d'en donner Flle Tit viser le
slen pour Paris.'(?dggepassport, now in the Archives Nationales,
is datéd originally the ath’of April and countersigned the
23rd of the mame month.

It wes by letter tiat she told her father she was going to
Tngland. In her letter to Barbaroux, she says: "Dans ma dér—
nizre lettre, je lui feisais croire gque redoutant %es ?orreurs

139

de la guverre civile je me retirals en Angleterre." Ve find

ancther proof in her father's testimony. "Te pere de Medemoiselle
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de Corday sublt a Argenten, le oO Julllet un interrogatoire
dont 1l'auteur de la "Guerre des Vendéens et des Chouans"(l40)
donne un extraite... "‘M de Corday déclare qu'il a regu dé
sa fille une lettre datee de Caen du)baral matin, anne.ngant,
1° qu’a son depart de cette ville elle met cette lettre & la
peste; 2° que, lorsqu'il la recevrait,:elle ne sereit plus en
Franceg 3° qu'elle ne croyait pas qu'on put ¥ vivre tﬂinquille
de longtemps; et 4° qu'elle le priait de ne faire aucune re-
cherche,(riroe que peruonnr ne pouvait savolr encore ol elle
allait." ' %&e letter itself otill ‘existe, and belongs to the
collection of Chéronde Villiers. )

Tike Fsguiros, Lemartine tells the ‘story of the Bible open
to the book of Judith. Did hetake itfrom the former's novel or
did he, like Fsquiros, learn it from the oral tradition zt Caen?
Although thcy differ in one or two detalls, the Wording is very
similar. Fequiros says: "Etant’entree, un soir, daus sa chambre,
~elle [Mme de Bretheville) trouva sur la table une vieille Pible
ouverte, et lut ces motls soulignés au crayon: 'Judith,sortit de
la ville, parée d'une beauté merﬁeilleusedbﬁt le Seigneur lul
avalt fait cadeau, pour se rendre & la tente d'Holopherne. 5146)

Lamartine's version readb. "Mme de Bre@@Vllle se souvint
depuis gqu'en entrant dans 1a'chambre de Charlotte pour la ré-
velller, elle avait trouvé sur soﬂ 1it une vieille Rible ouverte

au livre de Judith, et qu 'elle y aveit 1lu ce verset soullgne

eu creyon: 'Judith sortit de la ville, parée d 'une merveilleuse
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beauté, %ont)le Seigneur lui avait fait don pour délivrer
143 | |

Israel." The suthenticity of the story has already been

(144) |
discussed. ‘

Lamahfine déscribes as follows, Charlotte Corday's final
preparaticns for her departupe: "Charlotte combla ces der—
nisres heures dé‘reconnaiSSance, de prévoyance et de tendres:ce
pour cette tante, 2 qui elle awit AU une sl longue et si |
douce ho@pitalité; elle pourvut par une de ses amies au sort
de la vieille servanie qui avait ew soin de sa jéunesse.‘ Elle
commanda €1t paya d'avance, chez des ouvriéres de Caeen, de pe—
tits présents de robes et de broderies destinés a Ctre portés
aprés son départ, en gouvenir, ) quelques‘jeunes compagres de
son enfance. Tlle distribua ses lilvres de'prédilection entre
les personnes de ©ou intimi?fi5§lle ne réserve pour 1'emporter
qu'un volume de Plutarque.” -AlthOUgh this thoughtfulness for
others may not be contrary to Charloite Cordey's charecter, we
have no‘other record of these detalls. Moreover, it does not
seem likely that she Would have wanted to call so much attention
to her departure. |

According to Temartine, Charlotte used the same ruse to
deceive her aunt that she lad used to set at rest her father's
fears, thet 1g, che told her she was leaving scon for Fngland
to join some émigre fpriends who had pfomi?ed her a refuge. How-
1486

ever, Tamartine borrows from Esguiros her immediate excuse

for leaving the house. "Elle enbrasca sa tante, et lui dit gu'elle
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| | ~ (147)
allait dcssiner les faneuses dans les prairies voisines."

The facts as revealed by Cbarlotte Corday's testimony on
thlis point, have already been taken up,(ldggd need no further
attention here. | |

Bike Tsquiros, jamartine calls the child to whom Chap-—
1otte Corday gbve her(diiwing materials, Robert. Other writers
give his name &s Louis% ) |

Another very pretty story is told by lamartine. Across
the street from the Grand MénOir lived a young musician, who
habitually devoted several hours each gorning to hié instru—
ment. TFTvery day, at the seme hour, when he began to play,
Charlotte would open Ler shutters snd &t at her.window listen~
ing to the music. The young man had grownAto expect and to
~enjoy this appreciative 1istener,

"Le veille du jour ou Charlotte, déja affermie dens sa
résolution, se préﬁ&rait & partir pourAl'aocomplir et mourir,
le pisno se fit entendre é 1'heure sccoutumée. Char}otte, ar-
rochée sans doute & la fixite@ de ses peﬁséeé‘par la puissance
de l'habitude et par l'attrait de 1l'art qu'elle aimait, ouvrit
sa fenétre comme & l'ordinaire et parut écouter lesvnotes avece
une attention aussi calme et plus réveuse encore que les autres
Jours. Cependant elle referma la croisée avec une sorte de
précipitation inusitée svant que le musicien eut refermé éon cla—

vier, comme si elle elt voulu s'srracher violemment elle-méme

dans un edieu pénible au dernier plaisir qui ls captiveit.
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"Le 1endemain, le jeune voisiu, sfétant asvis de nouveau
devant son instrument, regarda au ford de la cour de la maison
en face, si lesipremiers pféludes fersient ouvrir les volets

d

(0]

le. Aicce de Mme de Bfetteville. la fenétre fermée ne
‘s'ouvrit plus! Ce fut sinel qu'il aprrit le départ de f‘harig:é?:(‘zga

There is some basis Tor this story. wa much, we doﬁnot
kncw. Speaking df Frédéric Vaultier of ann, who has left sone
velusble notes on Charlotte Corday, Defrance says. "Vault ier
habitait en face de Charlotte gu'il voyait uouvent e la fenetre
de 1'appurtement de Mmne de Bretteville, pour ent%nare les airs
que Jjouait sur le clavecin un jeune homme v0131n.%0l)

~ One would think, from reading Lamaftine's account of the
Journey to Paris, that Charlotte did much to enlivgn it for her
fellow trevellere. "La liberté et la séeurité de sa’oohversa—
tion dans la voiture gui I'emportaif vers Psris n'inspirérent &
ses compugnons de voyage d'autre sentiment que celui de 1'ad-
Firatwou, de la blenveillance et de cette curiosité naturelle
tn:onnue. €»ouissgnte de
qui s'attache au nom et au sort d 'une, jeuncsee et de beauteé.

Flle ne cessa de jouer, pendant la premisre journee, avec une
Petite fille que le hrasard awit placée & clts d'elle dans la
voiture....

”Les autres voyageurs etaient das Montagsrards exaltés, gul
fuyeient le soupgon de fédéralisme a Paris et qui se répendaient

4 .
en imprecetions comtre le Gironde et en adoration pour Merat.

Eblouis des grices de la Jeune fille, ils s'efforcerent de lui
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arracher son nom, l'objet de son voyage, son adresse & Paris.
Son isolement & cet tge les encouragealt & des familiarités
gu'lelle réprim& ver la décence de ses maniéres, par la brie-
veté évasive de ses réponses, et auxquelles elle parvint &
se soustraire tout é felt en feignant le sommeil..... Elle
charma jusqu'é le. fin du voyage eses compagnons de rout?par
cette apparition revissante, dont téus regrettérent de se sé-
(152) |

parer.”

Our only euthentic source for the detalls of this trip
is Charlotte's letter to Barbaroux. No mention is made there
of the little girl, and we receive the impression that Char-—
lotte, contemptuous of her fellow-travellers, had little to
do with them. "J'étais avec des bons montagnards que je lais-
sal parler toutyieur content, et leure propos aussi sots que

L4 » » 'FQ_S . LY '
leurs personnes etaiesnt desagreables, ne seprvirent, peu a(m e?—
v 153
AN

dormir; je ne me réveillai rour einsl dire, gu'a Paris."

On reaching Paris, says gamartine, Charlotte Corday went
at once to the hdtel de la Providence, "gqu'on lui awilt indiqué
\ (154) 'y ; .
& Caen."  Agked by Montane in her preliminary hearing, "Qui luil
avait indiqué 1'h8tel ou elle & logs?", she replied that it was.
"Par un des hommes qui sont au Bureau (des Messageries Nation-

. (155)

ales), qu'elle ne connait pzs."

Crediting, like Fsqguiros, Charlotte Corday's statement in

(158)

her first examination, Tamartine says that she went to bed at

five in the afternoon, and did not leave the hotel till the next
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morning. Like Tequiros, he places Charleotte's two visits

to Duperret on the 12th instead of on the 11th, and her
warning to him to leave Paris, on the ccecasion of her first
interview with him. Trese points have already been discussed
in the chapter on Esquiros. ¥ '

Lamartine is correct in saying thet Duperret's‘papers
were seized on the 12th. However, since he dates Charloite's
and Duperret's frip to the office of Garat, on the 13th, he
hes 1o suppose that this seizure occurred befecre the latter
Vevent. This is contrary to fact. Moreover, since the as-
sassination is to ocour on the evening of the 13th, there is
no time for Duperret's afterﬁoon visit toAChaﬁlotte's hotel.
Tamaertine solves this difficulty by saying that on returning
that morning from Garatis office, Duperret told Charlotte
that his papers had been seized and persuvaded her to abandon
herbproject. |

On parting with Duperret, according to Lamartine, Cher-—
lotte went to the Palais-Royal. "Elle entré‘dans le Jjardin,
non comme une étrangére quil veut satisfaire sa curiosité par
la contenplation des monumenﬁs et des jardins’publics, meis
comme une voyageuse qui n's gu'une affaire dans une vilie, et
qui ne'veut perdre ni un pas ni un jour. Elle chercha de 1'eil,
sous les géleriem, le meagasin d'un coutelier. Elle y entra,
choisit un coutesu~poignard & manche d‘éb&ne, le paya trois

]

.
francs, le cacha sous son fichu, el renirs & pes lents dans
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le erdiﬂ.

This does not agree very closely with Cherlotte's own testi-
mony. In her first examination, sheadeclared "qu'elle est
sortie ce motin (1e 15), a at@ au Palais~Bova1 vers le gept -
heures et demie huit heures, ¥ a acbeﬁe le coutpau...."(légn
her second hearing, quesﬁioned as 1o Wkere she had bought the
knife, she answered "qu'elle ignore dans quelle boutique,‘ni
de luel eots ne 1! ayant achetd qu'apres 1v01r fait dix fois
- (159)

le tour du Paleis-Royall |

Fext we find what seems to be a trace of F?lg%§os's story
of the child in tre garden of the Pala&é—Royal. On coming
out of the cutler's shop, says Lamartine, "Elle s'assit un mo-
ment sur un des bancs de pierre 6.8088ES audgrcades. Lé, guoi-
Que plongée dans ses réflexions, elle S'én laisse distraire par
lés Jeux des ehfants, dont quelgues—uns folétraient a ses pieds
et s'appuyaient avec confiance sur ses genoux. Elle eut un
dernier sourire ce femme pour ces visages et pources jeux."

According to Lamartine, "Sa premicre penaee aveit ete d'abore
der Mapat’et de le sacrifier au Champ-de-Mars, a la grande cé—
rémonie de la fédération gul devait avoir lieu le 14 juillet.....
l'ajournémentlde cette solennité Jusqu'au triomphe de la ré-
Publigue sur les Vendéens et les insurgés lui enlevait le théétre
et la vietime. Sfe seconde pensée avalt &té jusqu'a ce dernier
nioment d e frapp?{6g%rat au sommet de la Montogne, au milieu de

la %onvention."

Roth in her testimony at the trisl and in her lotter to Rer-
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baroux, Charlotte Corday says that she had planned to kill
Maret in the’ConventiOn, but nowkere in the records-do'we
find any mention of the prOJect of committing th@ crime at
tle Champfde Mars. That part is au,wrentlyjlamartlne's own
sddition. 4 )

He decleres thet "son espoir était d'Stre immolée elle—
meme aussit8t~aprés,,ét mise en piéces par la fureur du peuple,
sans leisser d'autres traces et‘d'autre mémoire que deux ca-
davres et la tyrannie rénvarsée dans éon sang. Ensevelir son
nom derns 1'oub1i...(.'bélle était Jusqu'z la fin la seule am—
bition de son ame." 16§%érlotte Corda{ herself furnishes author-
ity for this statement, in her trial, %Si)i; ghe really wanted
her name to remain unknown, why did she pin in her bosom her
certificate of baptism? Laﬁartine dqés not mentién this’dc-
cunent., | :

According to Lamartiné; Charlotte 1eff her firet letter
to Marat at the latter's door on the morning of the 13th and the
second with his portiere at one a'clock p.m. As we have already
seen,(lggl nziled the first letter, and the second was found
on her after her arrest. In her first hearing, she sald "gque (51c)
la crainte d'éprouver un refus, elle s'était précautionnée d'une
autre lettre, gqu'elle se proposait de faire tenir au citoyen
Murat maib qu ?lle)n en a point faill usage, ayant été regue

166

a cette heure."

In speaking of Marat's household, Temartine, in a most sur-
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prising menner, replacés three women by‘dne. "On éonnaft(la
femme qui gouvernait sa‘maison; Elle se ﬁommait naguére Ca-
therine Rvpard; méisvon 1'appelait{A1bePtine Merat depuis que
l'ami du peuple lui évait~donn§ son nom, en la prenant pour
5pcuse, un jour de beau temps,(é %? fece du soleil, a 1'exem—
ple de Jean—Jacques Rousgseau." 16ﬁs we already know, Marat's
mistress was‘SimonnefﬂvrafdQ Catherine Evfard was her sister
who lived with her, and plbertine Marat s Ma:at's own sister.
Thé latter was in Switeerland at the time of her brotleris as—
sassination. o |

When Ciarlotte Corday entered, says‘iamartine, Marat "tenait
de la mein droite la plume gue 1'arrivée de 1'étrangére avait
ctuspendue sur la page. Cette feuille de papier était une lettre
& la Gonvéntion, pour lul demander le jugemen%let la proscrip—
tion des derniers Bourbons tolérés en France! %E)have already

| ot (169) ‘ ’
discussed the accuracy of this statement.

In describing the scene after the a=sa§sinatidn of Merat,
TLamartine says: "Un cordslier fanatigue, nomme Langlois, perru-
quier‘de la rue Dauphiné, aveit ramassé le oouteau_ensanglanté.
Il faiseit le discours funébre sur le cadevre de la vietime. Il
entrecoupalt ses lamentations.et ges éloges de gestés vengeurs,
Par lesquels il semblait enfoncer sutant de fois le fer dans le
cour de llassassin. Charlotte, qul avalt accepté d'avance toutes

- & 4
ces morts, contemplait d‘'un regard fixe et petrifie ce mouvement,

»
Ces gestes, ces mains, ces armes dirigees de si prés coutre elle.
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eeve.On voyait se desginer sur ses levres le sourire amer

du mépris. 'Pauvres gens, dit-elle. Une fois, vous voulez

ma mort, ét vous me devriez un autel pour vous avoir délivré&s
d'un monstrel Jetez—moi a ces ;orcenpa, dit—elle une autre
fois aux soldats qui la protegeaient puisou ils le rogrettent,_
11s sont dignes d'etre mes bourréaux. (170)

This ihcident seems to be teken, at 1east’in part, from
the "Souvenirs de la Terreur" of Georges Duval. TVatel quotes
from this work: "Quand nous entrémes dans la chambre de Marat,
un homme &telt au milieu brandissant un couteau encanglante....
Cﬁétait un nommé Tanglois, perruquier,'rue Dauphing,....1'un
des principaux membres de la commvne....,‘guillotiné le 11 ther-
midor...." Vatel adds: "Ces dotails sont faux. Le noinme Lang-
lois, qui ‘était membre de ls commune et pmrit le 9 tperm1dor,
était un serrupier. (lgi)doas not digeuss the authenticity of
this funeralloration, but we £ind no mention elsewhere of it or
of the comments that Lamartine puts into Charlotte Cordax's
mouth. Following the cxumlnatlon of tie prisoner at Marat's
Louse, according to Lanartine, she was subjected to another at
the Abbvaye by Chabot, Drouet and Legendre. This interrogatory
&t the prison 1s not recorded elsewhere, but scme historians
do agsert that Charlotte was taken before the Committee of CGe~
Neopal Security end questioned there. Defrance says, in regard

»
to this: "Il n'est pas absolument prouve gue ce sccond inter—

rogatoire de Crarlotte Corday au Comité de Slireté Générale ait
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bien eu lieu. Alors que divers auteurs’ contemporains des

Evinemente 1'affirment, les documents d'archives ne nous
| (172) '

indi quent rien sur ce point."

According to Laﬁartine, it ﬁas during this examination
at the Abbaye that Ohérlotte was ssarched and her "Adresse
aux Frangais"lfound. L&martine wag one of the first to pub-
lish this document. The original ?§$5§ransmitted to hiim in
1846 by its possessor, M. Paillet. = Leamartinerdescribes the
address as follovs:

"Elle est écrite de la main de Ciarlotte Corday, d'une
éoriture & grends traits, méle, ferme, fortement ﬁracée, et
comme_destinée a frapper de loin les regards. ILa feuille de
papler est pliée en huit, pour occuper moine de place sous le
vétement; elle est percée de huit piqlres encore viS%?%Z§ par
1'epingle qui liattachait sur le sein ée Charlotte."

He adde: "L'authenticité de cette adfesse est attestée
par une lettre de Fouquier-Tinville annexée au méme dossier.
Cette lettre de l'accusateur publiec @sﬁ adressée au comitd de
siireté générale de la Convention ; la‘voici:

"'"Citoyens, Je vous fals passer éi—inolus l'interrogatoire
subl par la fille Charlotte Cordey €t leé deux le tires par elle
écpites dens la maison d'arret, dont 1'une ect destinée o EarQ
barcux. Ces lettres courent les rues d'une maniére tellenent
tronguée Qu‘il serait peut—étre né?igﬁ?ire de les faire im-—

. { \ 5

Primer telles qu'elles sonbtec.s.'"

Although the authenticity bLoth of the address and of the
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letter qudted is beyOnd’gueétion,'there does not seem to De
any,basis for eoneluding that thé-latter has any reference
to the former. Ve have every reason to.beiieve that it re-
fers to the two letters,vtofﬁarbdroux énd to lier father,
written by rharlotie Corday in her prlscn and published in
1793 in the Bulletin du Tribunal Révolutionunaire. The "Ar
dresse aux Frangais” was written at the hotel de 1s Providence.
fo far &8 We can éscertain, no flalse versions of this address
bad been published at tiat tims, while numerous veriations of
the two letters had apﬁeared.

 Lemertine freely alters the letter to Barbaroux and omits
meny passages. Some of these qmissions are indicated; others
are not. Most of the changes lLe makes a?e merely changes in
wording;’wheréby’he improves thé style, but does not arpreciably
change the meaning. Most of the passages omitted are unim—
portant, but a few aré rather significant. TFor example, he leuaves
out the part relative to Charlo?t$ ) last‘letter to ler faﬁher
before her departure from Caen. * ?his would contrad:ct Lis pre-—
vious statement that she went to Argent&n the day before leaving
for Paris.

Likewise, the following is omitted: "Ils (ceux qui me re—
0'r“ntterenent) se rejoulrout de me voir jouir du fepo§ d?ns les
Champs—Elysées aved BPrutus et quelgues anciens." 17;amartine
probably feared that this éentence would lend an argument to the
theory tn&u Charlotte Corday was an infidel. |

He =1so omits the peai:sage relating to Rougon—Lon"rais, cited
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(178)
in the introduction to this thesis. It ig probably becsuse
he attacres no 51gai¢1°ﬁnce to it.

In Crharlotte's farewell letter to lter father, she quotes
the following verse from "le Comte d'Eesex" of Thomas Cor-

S, (179)
neille: "Le crime fait la honte et non pas 1'echafand."

Lamartine apparently as seribes 1t to Pierre Corneille, for Le
says: "Cette allusion & un vers de son aicul....aemblalf %1 acer
son action sous la scuvegarde du genie de sa famille."( 18]

| Lamortine states that "Le president du tribunal révolu—
tionnaire, Montane, vinu le ledemain 16, interroger 1' accuéii%)
Montené did not come to the Abbaye, as this would lead one to
believe. On the contrdry, PLVrlotte was taken to the Palaie de

(182

Justice.

Lamartiné, though less lavish tian Eequires in his invention
of incidents, is not willing to let ~harlotte Corday go to the
guillotine without kﬁowing of Adem Tux's interest in her. After
telling about the artist whom Charlotte noticed sketchinv her
at the trial, he adds: "Derriére le peln re,yun Jeune homme, dont
les cheveux blonds, 1'eil bleu, le Teint pile rdvélaient un homme
du Nord, s'élevalit sur la pointe des pieds pour mieux apercevoir
1'accusée. Il tenait‘les'yeux attachés sur elle, comme un fan-
tdme dont le regard aurait contracté 1'immobiiité de 1la mOrtesss
Plusieurs foils, ne pouvent contenir son éﬁotion, il provodua par
des exclametions involontelres les murmures de l'audifoire et

l'attention de Charlotte Corday. Au mement ou le président pro-
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nonga 1'arrét de mprt,‘ce jeuné homme se leve & demi avec'
le geste d'un homme qui pfotesfe dahs gon ceur, et se ressit
pussitdt comme i les forees lui ménquaient. ‘Charlotte, in-
sensible a 50N progpre sort, vit ce mouvement....on regard le
remercia. Ce fu?lgé?r'seul entretien ioi—bas..;,Ce Jeune homme
Stait Adem Lux." Wi can find no reason for believing thaet Adam
Lux was’at the trial br that he saw Charlotte Corday before the
, (184) |

evening of her execution. ]

Lamertine records the answef ofLCharlotte Corday to the
Priest who came to administer the lust sacfament: "Remercicz
ceux qui‘ont en l'atténtiongﬁgryous‘envoyer; meis je n'ai pas
besoin de votre ministere," bu%'he‘adds,to it: "le sang que
j'ai versé et mon sang gue Jje vails répandre‘s??g6%es seuls
secerifices que Jje puisse offrip ﬁyl'Eternel;" These latter
words are'to be found nowiere else. Lamertine evidently in-
serts them to show thet Lis Leroine, although, perhaps, not a
follower of any particular creed, did believe\in & supreme Béing.
Ve lLave already called’atténtion to the omission of the passage
’in Charlotte's letter to Ba:baroux, whepé she. speaks of being in
the Tlysian Tields with Brutus and the ancients. In znother
place, the author saYs tiat she spent the dey after herp arr%;%%)
in Paris "dans se ohambpe, a lire, & réfléchif,‘et a prier."
fince no one but Charlotte Corday herself could’ﬁell‘what she(did

wkile alone in Ler room, and since she mekes no mention of having

Spent any time 1n prayer, we can on’y conclude tht this is another
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addition of Tamartine's for the purprose of throwing on Clar—
lotte's claracter, the light in whiech he wished us to see
her.

Lamartine, like several other historians, speaks of Le~

| \ (1e8)
gros as "un des velets du bourreau." The identity of this man

o v (189)
has already been discussed in the preceding clapter.

Thus we find that the story of Charlotte Corday according
to Lemartine is very inexact. Althouglh the latter does not
invent inecidents to the extent thet Tsquiros does, he uses
little discrimination in his choiece of sources. In addition

. - X s . oo
to the two he mentions in his "Critigue des Girondins, one of
which, Georges Duval, iIs very unreliable, he uses at least two
other doubtful authorities: Fsquiros and Paul Delasalle.

Fven where tke sources are adaquate, Lemartine is inexact

. . »
es to detall. In the words of Doumlc, "-—-Une fois les mate—
LY ~ . '
riaux recueillis, i1 e'en considere comme le meitre.  Yon seule-
. ) -~ ' ’
ment 11 les alidre sans le Taire expres, en y transportant le
LR . ! . . . . : .
genie de l'inexectitude qui est en lui, meis il y a mieux; il
» . I
s'en sert comme d'un point de depart; il est persuadé Jue les
' -~ RN S N 3
documents sont tout Juste des indications propres & le metire
> 3 3 » . » ) ’ .
sur la voie et gue son imegination ainsi dirigee peut retrouver
” » 3 -y
directement la vérité. Ils sont l'occasion pour lui de mani-
, (190) |
fester ee faculte d'intuition.”

Tamertine's portrayal of Charlotte Corday's charecter just-—

»
1fies the following criticism by Doumic: "Son lyrisme eclate

8ussl bien dans la fagon dont il présente les personnages et dans
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laJébnduite de son sujet. Dans cette Listbire (L'Fistoire des
Gipo%dins)....illne juge_les acteurs Gue par une secrete conpa—
raison avee lui-méme. Le borfrait‘du'protagomiste,est touj?ugs3
sous divers ngms, le portrait de 1'auteur peint par lui—mgme%gl
Thus, Lamertine, himself deeply religious,rejects the
theory that his héroine‘hadvno religion. Very Sﬁsceptible to
ldve, heépictures her as hungry for love, but,’on socount of
her poverty, stifling each impulse in that direction. Her
'exfrao}din&ry patriotism is & result of the suppression of her

natural womanly longing for marrlage and a hones

5 e 0 ¢ 8 90O 6 00 e 0
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Chapter III.

Crarlotte OordayAin Drama.

The form of literature in which the cheracter of Chapr-—
lotte Corday most often appears is the drame. Vatsl, in -
1872, counted twenty—nine original pieces and’tﬁo trane—

; - (192) ,
lations written in dramatic form. Of some of these, we
know little more than the tifle and the approximate date;
fe& have attained any success on the stage; and the cnly
one that is really well-known is the‘"charlotte Torday" of
Ponsard. »

In an article in the "Feuilleston de la Presse" of July
19, 1847, Théophile Cautier declered: "Il n'y a rien de
dramotique, cu du moins de Thedtral, dans lz vie de Char—
lotte Corday.‘ Tlle ne confia & personne son secret, fraﬁpa
le monstre auguel elle attribuait les malheuré de la petrie,
2t mourut silencisuse comme elle avait vécu; le combat est
tout intérieur. Cherlotte Oordey pourra &tre le sujet d'un
adnirable récit ou d'une ode sublime: M. de Tamartine et

.. (193)
Andre Cheuler l'ont prouve; meis cette Llanche status soli-

[44]

taire refusera toujours de ee meler aux groupes seéniqu's plus

ov. meing habilement arrangés per les dramaturges. Un graud

poéte pourrait traduire en monoclogues sublines, 1'éme et les

pensces de l'héronUe p?titi—fille de Correille, mais lo &'er—
174)

~ s - o . " "
reterait sa pulssance.
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. On the other hand, Gustave Planche in the "Revue des -
Deux—Mondes"vof April 1lst, 1850, says: "Le sujet choisl par
M. Ponsard prdsente certainémenﬁ de,grandeskdifficultés,
cependant jé ne crols pas qué'larfigure de Charlotte Corday
doive 8tre bannie du thdatre. Il y a dans le courage viril
de cette Jeune fille une donneetragigue dont 1a poesie peut
s' emparer."(lga)

Let us keep in mind these two conflicting opinions, as
ﬁe examine the most jmportant of these dramatic works. Only

three plays will be discussed here. None of the others were

available.



Page 87,

A.

P2 le's "Charlotte Cordai,

Tre earliest of the dramag that we Bhall dloCU&S,
is the "Chéplotte‘ﬁordai" of Salle. Written,'only &
fow montbs after the d=ath of Charlotte Corday, by one
of the pro ibed erondlrt eruties, and critieized by

throe of his on]leamue\, its hwstory and tiat of its

unfortunate author are more interesting than the play

itself.

Jeen-Paptiste Salle was born November 25th, 1759,

» . .
at Vezelise, & smell town in LO”Iclﬂj. In his early

vouth, falle became interested in science, and resclved

~ -~

to study mediciue. After receiving the degree c¢f dcetor

of plilosophy at the University<of POﬁEé—Mousson, Le cbm—'

pleted Lis studies «t Paris. When Le returned home, hieg

philanthropy and his popularity won for Lim the position
.

L . 03 » . = 0y
of "Medecin stipendie" of the town. ¥e was married, in

1787, to Cetlerine-Charlotte Poilnsigron.

Mt twenty-nine yesrs of zge, Salle was elected as de-
L4 »
puty of tlre Tiers Ftat to the Ttets Ceneraux, where he fir

attraotad atucntion in the discussion on the veto. He fa-~

vored the suspensive, but not the absolute veto.

PR ) ‘
Tith Lafayette, Cleyes, Tameth, and others, he was one

of the fourders of the Feuillants.

After the adjournment of the Assemblée Conetitvante,

wm

chk
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Salle returned'to Vézelise for e whllk, and was made a
member of tr € D»rebto;re of Lis department. He waé soon
elected to the Convention, however, and went back to
Paris.

He‘hated despotism, but defenrded the king. Louié XVI,
he maintained; Was'the leaqt dengerous individual of his
family. He advoe ted that the Convpnulon rronounce him’
guilty, tut that the question of the penalty be roiprred
to the people.

He oprosed the sstablishment of the Revolutionary Tri-
bunal ?ﬁgg%e ground that %t would become a "tribunal de

sang” .

‘,(’,,

An enemy of Marat and his pelicies, falle accused Lim
three iimes in the Oonvention. When tle Girondist depu—~
ties were proscribed,‘Salle's neme vag eleventh on tie list.

Te fled te Chartres, then te Fvrsux, and later to Caen,
wlere he busied limeelf writing r(lluibél panphlets and
letters. T ) ‘ !

On the 28th onyuly, with the other fugitive geputies,
falle left Caen. They crossed Brittany on foot, arr;ving

- L - . .
Fervelegearn§, newr Quimper. August

finally, at . - house
flst, they embarked for the Girounde, and reached Pordeaux
gsevereal days later, only to find the Montagne triumphant
there. Touvet tells tiat Guedet appesled to more than thir-

ty personeg before Tinding one who would consent teo recelve
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' - (197} o :

him and his friends. Cuadet had loped to find a place

of concealment at his fatherfs Iousce at Saint—Fmilion, but
when they rééohéd it, they‘fcund the house alre&dy watched.
However, Cusdet's sigter-in-law, Madene BCﬁQuey, caeme to
their besoue, and reoeived,\first, Cusdet and falle, and
later Parbaroux, Velady, Louvet, Ruﬁot and Petiqn. She
hid them in & large cavé, left in an abandoned'quarry;,
~wlich fhey reachéd by maans of an old well in the yard.

They remained thére for‘about & month, end the tra-

gedy of "Charlotte Oordai was probably begun during this
time.

FTinally, this place became unSafe, and they were
forced to leave. Py this time, the Louse of Guedeti's
father was norlonger watched, and Guadet and Salle tock
refuge there, in & heabet‘attie.

It wes there‘that S8elle composed most of’his tragedy.
This wes followed by a "conte satihique? in verse on the
"Tnipie de Nanton sux Fnfers."

The two deputles were discovered‘ana arrested in the
night of the "28 prairial, an II." falle attempted to
sl.eot Limeelf, but tie pistol would not go off. He was
toeken to Pordeaux.and ezecuted there the "1efMessidor,
an IT."

"hen falle had firisted Lis tragedy of "Charlotte

Cordai", he sent it to his Triends, Petion, Puzet, and



s .

Barbaroux, asking thelr opiricn of it. They each. re-
plied with a letter of criticism.

Two of these letters, Petion's and Buzot's,found

&
|

among the parers of ile Girondius, were officially pr
served and are now in tie "Archives Netionales". Bar—

baroux's letter and the original manuscript of the tra-—

gedy were, for yeears, lost aud almost completely for-—

gotten. ( )
198

In 1887, a %Strangefyoung .+ ULrought to M. Frence,

e publisher and Look-seller on the qgual Voltaire, some o0ld
menuscripts, among which were found:

0 . - i 2
"1° Un cahier petit in-8%, renfermant le brouillon

o

. . .
riginal ou premier Jet de la tragedie de "Char-

1

otte Cordal" de la main de falle;

2 Une copie du meéme ouvrage, format in -4, de 81
' »
pages, d'une e-~piture inconnue.

"A ces copiles ftalent jointes une lettre sautogrerhe )
199
\

» ~ Y. N .
de Parbaroux, adrsssce ¢ felle au sujet de se plece.”

Vatel Les made exteusive luvestlgations 1un an attenpt

" t0 discover the history of these pupers from the time they

were seized to the time when M. Froance rescesived them. .
Ve Las proved, by tie official records, that these

4.

menuvseripts, together with all the other papers of the de-—
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puties arrested at fei téﬁnillon, were sent by Jullien )
; (200
of Pordeaux to the "Co ité ae alu Public" at Paris.

i

It was from tlere that they aisg*zu red.

Fefore 1863, Vatel lad obtsined & menuscript of the
tragedy from Jean Guedet, néphew and heilr of the Girendin
uadet. As early as 1823, Jean fuadet hed published fra$-
cmerts of the pley and would ﬁrobably rave publiShed it
in its entirety, had not Rein t?Pnuyo objected cn-the ground
]
of 1t8 lack of literary value. ?In rega:d to the origin of
the menuscript, Jeen Guadet says:‘k
"Ausgl loin gue peuvent remonter mes souvenirs, J’ai
‘vu dans ma ”wmllle, un menuscrit original, sur papler com-
run d'un bleu szuré, format petit in-4°, avec ce titre:
'Charlotte Corday, traoeale en cing actes et en vers, par
(508)
Yalle, 1'un des proscrits.'"

In 17QQ Bosc, "c J-devant AdMIﬁL&bfatehf des 7o

jrs ] F’?

tes
203

/\Q

)

et setuellement consul de le Republlouo & New-York,'
acting in belelf of Cuadet's and Petion's widows and of
Perbaroux's mother, wfote to tre "Ministre de la Police,
asking his intervention in recovering the faint-Emilion
decuments, wlich, he hed resson to believe, were %qngge
Lands of "Vatard" and "le Ceintre" of Versailles o

René Vatar was the "Imprimenr du Comité de falut

Publie."” The Circndin pespers, Vatel thinks, might heve
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‘ , (205)
been given to him for publication. Another conjecture
1s that Robespierre hed taken them to exemime them when
they reached the Comité, and thdt Laurent Lecointre, a
member of thLe bommission cherged with exemining the pa—
pers of Robespierre after the fell of thke latter, had

(208)
found the feint-¥milion documents and taken them. Le-

cointre and Vatar were close friends, and either might
have transmitted them to the otler.
In & notice to the second part of the memoirs of
Barbarous, published by his son, the latter says: "La
. . ,. » )
partie que Jje publie avait eté remise & M. Pasc, de
- » » »
1'Institut; c'est par lui gu'elle m'e &té conservee et
(207)
rendugeee.. "
- ) .
Vatel adds: "I1 faut denc conclure gue la deémarche
» ‘ » . P N o
eeeescavalt reussi et que Vatar aveitete oblige de rendre
(208)
LY . -
& Posc les manuscrits des Girondins."
N
"Enfin 1'un des doubles de la tragedie de Charlotte
Corday par falle pourrait bien €tre parvenu par Posc &
M. Jilien Cuadet. Ce manuscrit, inconnu probeivlement de
' 3 (J ~ '
la veuve de falle, s e rattachait intimement a la meison
‘ » » L4
Cuedet, a Seint-Fmilion. M. Julien Cuvadet aveit 4té chargé
per Louvet de feire des recherches pour retrouver les
’ »
ouvrages des Girordins. Il etelt donc naturel qu'au mo- .

A I . -
ment ou ces ouvrages eteient retrouvés gpres tant d'efforte,
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un des exemplaires fit offert au seul représentant de la
famille qui elt survecu & cette sanglante immolation.
Ainsi B'expliquerait comment M. Jean Guadet, fils du
précédent, auralt vu ce manuscrit depuis son enfance dans
ia maison ;atérnelle."(gog)‘ ‘ |

The papers sold to M. France, including the firét
draft of the tragedy, and the letter of Barb&roux, must
heve been reteined by Vatar. |

Af&er’a long search,4Vatel found thet the young nman
who had brought ihgm-to M. Trance, was a certain M. Chau-
liac. Be went to see him and learned frem some medals
which Chaulisc's father had obtained from the same source .
es the tepers, that the latter had come from Charleé Du~
val, & deputy from Rennes to the "Assemblie législative",
to the Convention and £o the "Cing-Cents", an intimate
friend of Vatar, and, like Tecointre, & member of the com—.
mission clarged with the examination ofHRobespierre's pa-'
pers. |

The Saint-TFmildon manuscripts and the medals trad beeﬁ'
given to the elder Chauliac in 1835 by a M. Rosier, who in
turn, had received them from Raveau, son-in-law of Charles
;Duval.(ZIO

Thus, except for‘the few fragments published by J.
Guadet, the drema of Salle, fiunished in 1794; and the criti-

cisms of his friends were not made public until 1863.
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Salle's aim throﬁghout the play, and especially in‘
ihe almbst interminable first scene, is apparently, to
paint in the blackest colors possible, his enemies, the.
Mohtagnards. ‘He wishes to Show\fhem ambitious to rule,
cbwardly, hostile ﬁo and suspicious of one another, and
ready to use any means, even to the vilest crimes, in
order to cccomplish their ends. | )

Vatel says: "La penséé qui le domine se trahit des
les bremiéres pages et dégkles;premiers vers. Avant tout,
ge donner le plaisir de peindre & sa fantaisie le rertreit
de ses adversaires, de les pfoduire hideux sur le scéne,

vde les montrer se confescant entre eux et dévoilant leurs
hontes dans l'expansism de leurs ‘
Adélibérations secretes, ¢ 'est déjé une satisfection; mails
Placer dans 1éur boﬁéhe la condamnation'involontaire du 3l
Medi, 1'éloge des proscrits, c'est—-a—dire des Gipondins, le
taeblean du mouvement fédépaliste et des craintes qufil a-—
vailt inspirées EUX MOnfagnards, Céétaif/unekvengeanee gui
devait sourire a Salle, surtout guand il songeait & son
parterre, qul se composalt de ses compagnens d'infortune et

) | (211)
peut-etre de Madame Bouguey."

The ecene of the play is the council room of the Com-
mittee of Public fafety. ™hen the first act opens, the
complittee is in sessibn. Perrere 1s making a report on tle
correspondence which he holds in his hand. We depicts the

dangers that threeten the members of the degpotic committee.
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Normandy, Brittany and the Midi arming thermeel ves to march
on Parisg; Wimﬁhe, outraged:by the Montagne, going over
to the Girondins; each member in dénger of being assassin-—
, \ . R (z12)
ated.’ "L'exemple Ge Brutus akgermeAdans les emes."
Sechele advocates endingkthe Terror and recalling the
proscribed deputies. The people, he‘thinks, will not en-
dure the shedding of any,morevbbadd,'and the Giroudine, if
pardoned, will be silenced by gratitude.
R&?@ierré's advice is:
"Feignbns; el sans ceder ayon%en l'apparence.’
"Offrons 4 ce parti, courbé sous no\s decrets,
"Un oubli reciproque et l'espeir de le Paix;
"Des Proscrits, pour un temps, faizons tomber lec
chaines;
"Ft g'11 le faut, amis, avant de triompher,
‘ (213)
"Serrons—les dans nes bras, mais'pour les Ftoutfer."
Amare suspects Poarrere of misrepresenting &ll these
perils, because he has seen him sometimes on the side of
the pfoacribed deputies. |
Danton thinks that the others are magnifying the dan-
gers which threaten them. Their enemies, he maintuins,
composed of several different perties, are not sufficiently
united to overthrow them. He scoffs at tlhe, idea of assass—
ins.,

At that moment, Bazipe enters, with the rews that Ma-

rat has just been murdered. Henriot follows to confirm the
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report. He ufges haéte in judging and execufing tlie
essassin, fon4fear that the“peopie, if they have fime to
think, may tranéfervtheir sympathy end their support to
her, and consequently, to thevGironde.'

But Danton sees tlat the death of Mareat Ia.y be turn—-
ed to the profit of his perty. Though they all hated Ma-—
ret, he seays, they must féign grief,kand above £11, do
nothing without semblance of justice and legality.

"ie sang versé sans regle est repandu sans fruit.

"Profitons du passé; sachons dans nos vengean?gg%)

"De la justice, amis, mettre les apparences.”

At the opening of the second'act, Robespierre reports
fhat tlie people are ready to be influenced either for or
against Charlotie Cofday end the Giroundins. The agents of
tiie Montagne are busy distributing money and buying publie
favor. |

Charlotte is to be bfought before the committee. Dan—
ton is uneasy because the people cannot be excluded from the
hearing. 4

A crowd of people arrive and Robesplerre tries to a-
rouse their indigration over the murder of Marat and over
the danger that threatens all the other leaders. Ii is

the Girondins, he declares, who heve instigated this ass-

aceination; Charlotte morday is but the instrument.
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Just then, gharlotte is brought in. She openly
accuses Dantonvand‘Rbbespierre of the crimes she at-
tributes to them}' Robes?ierre ﬁecomes angry, but 